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PRESS: Claudine San Nicholas, The Maui News

CHAIR PONTANILLA: . . .(gavel). . . The...the Budget and Finance Committee meeting
for...of the Council is now in session.
. . . Hello, can everybody hear? I hope so. Okay, I'd like to call to order the Council
Budget and Finance Committee meeting to order at Maui Waena School this evening.
Today is April the 7 th , 2010 and the time is approximately 6:30. Good evening everyone.
AUDIENCE: Good evening.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Tonight, we're here to take public testimony on the Fiscal Year 2011
Budget as proposed by the Mayor of this County. At this time, I'd like to yield the floor
to Councilmember Mike Victorino who will introduce the Members and the staff that are
here supporting the Committee this evening.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you, Chair Pontanilla, and good evening, everyone.
AUDIENCE: Good evening.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I don't hear you. Good evening, everyone.
AUDIENCE: Good evening.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I just want to make sure you're all up. Okay, let me start
off with our Member to my far life, left, life, ooh, come on. You, you do this for so many
weeks, you get to this point. I would like to start out with the incomparable one from
South Maui, Mr. Wayne Nishiki.
AUDIENCE: ... (applause and cheers)...
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: The next Member is the crooner of our gang. He is known
to be a tremendous singer, and comes from a long line of entertainers, from the
Paia-Makawao-Haiku area, Mr. Mike Molina.
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AUDIENCE: ... (applause and cheers)...
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Then we have the good looking guy from Molokai, as our
Chair, and I gotta be that way, 'cause I have favors to ask of him, so I gotta build 'em up
real...real, real big, Chair Danny Mateo, from Molokai.
AUDIENCE: ... (applause and cheers)...
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Next to me, your good looking. . .Central representative
from Kahului, Mr. Joseph Pontanilla.
AUDIENCE: ... (applause and cheers)...
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Then I go to my far right, the beautiful one, the
incomparable Ms. Gladys Baisa, from Upcountry area.
AUDIENCE: ... (applause and cheers)...
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: And then the next good looking gentlemen, is from the
island of Lanai, Mr. Sol Kaho`ohalahala.
AUDIENCE: ... (applause)...
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: And last but not least, he's as good looking as everybody
else, but he only comes from East Maui, so it's not that far away, our...our representative
from East Maui, Mr. Bill Medeiros.
AUDIENCE: ... (applause)...
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: The Staff we have tonight, we have our Legislative
Analyst, Ms. Kirstin Hamman. You can wave you know, so they know who you are.
AUDIENCE: ... (applause)...
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: And then our Committee Secretary, Camille Sakamoto.
AUDIENCE: ... (applause)...
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: And tonight all the refreshments and...that's being
provided by... for you tonight, we have some members that came... some of our staff that
came down early to set up. First of all, from Mr. Mateo's office, Mr. Arthur Suyama.
AUDIENCE: ... (applause)...
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: From Mr. Pontanilla's office, Ms. Michelle Yoshimura.
AUDIENCE: ... (applause and cheers)...
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Also from Mr. Pontanilla's office, Mr. Kelly McGinnis.
AUDIENCE: ... (applause)...
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: We have from my office, Mild Yokouchi.
AUDIENCE: ... (applause and cheers)...
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Also, Karean Zukeran, from my office.
AUDIENCE: ... (applause)...
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: And also, Stephanie Ohigashi from the Wailuku Office,
from my office.
AUDIENCE: ... (applause)...
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: And from Council Services, Mr. Ken Fuku...Fukuoka.
Sorry, he's out there somewhere. I don't know where Ken is, but he's here also.
AUDIENCE: ... (applause)...
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: So ladies and gentlemen, let's get the meeting started. We
have many testifiers. I'm gonna turn it back over to our Chairman, Mr. Pontanilla.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Mr. Victorino.
AUDIENCE: . . .(applause). . .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Also, I'd like to recognize, Mrs. Victorino, who helped prepare the
refreshments that are for you tonight. It's all located in the back of this hall. First of all,
the bathrooms are located to the rear of you folks, as you come, you know, came in from
the parking lot, it's to my right. The doors are open. For those of you that are testifying
tonight, if you can come up to the mic, speak into the mic, provide us with your name,
organization that you represent, and you'll have three minutes to testify. After two
minutes, the Staff will tell you that you have one minute to conclude, and if you can
conclude in three minutes, the Staff would, and the Committee would appreciate that.
But before we start the public testimony tonight, if everyone in here can turn off their cell
phones to the off position or silent mode position.
NOTE: Pause.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: .. . Also, I'd like to request the audience to respect each of the
testifiers. . .refrain from applause, cheers and jeers, and also when we conclude, and I
think most of you will...will be leaving this area once you conclude your testimony, so
whoever is left here, if you can help the Committee pick up the trash on the floor and,
you know, kind of set up this place the way it was because tomorrow they do have
school, and, you know, they'll be utilizing this cafetorium [sic].
ITEM NO. 1: PROPOSED BUDGET FOR FISCAL YEAR 2011 FOR THE COUNTY
OF MAUI (C.C. No. 10-27)
CHAIR PONTANILLA: So at this time, the Chair would like to call on the first testifier,
Pat Gragas. . .Pat Gragas. . .followed by Keoni Duey.
NOTE: Pause while Ms. Gragas approached the mic.

. . .BEGIN PUBLIC TESTIMONY . .
MR. GRAGAS: . . . Hi. Good evening. Can you hear me?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Lift 'em up. Lift 'ern up.
MR. GRAGAS: Oh . . .
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah, there you go.
MR. GRAGAS: My name is Pat Gragas. I've been employed as a paramedic for about 26 years.
I'm here to testify on behalf of the Maui medevac. I've been also a flight crew member
for medevac for about ten years, and I just want to say it's difficult on paper to look at the
usage and the cost involved of having that service. But all it takes is one flight and one
life. And right now, it's something very difficult to take away. I mean it can be taken
away, but to bring it back, it would be, it'd be pretty difficult to bring it back. It's one of
those things, it's nice to have--like that handy tool that you never use in your tool
box. . .except for that one time. But I'd like to thank you for the opportunity. I came to
share my support. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members any questions for the testifier? Seeing none,
thank you. Keoni Duey, followed by Kapena Hill.
NOTE: Pause while Mr. Duey approached the mac.

MR. DUEY: . . . Good evening, Council Members. My name is Keoni Duey representing AMR.
I'm here to talk about the Maui medevac. I feel it's really essential that you guys should,
you know, we should put in the money, and get the helicopter up and going again. It's a
really essential tool for EMS and everything else. 'Cause it just takes that one call.
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When "you know what" hits the fan, we're gonna wish we had the helicopter, yeah. One
of our key things is trying to get our patients to the hospital as soon as possible, and that's
a really vital, essential tool for us. Thank you for your guys time. Aloha.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier? Seeing none,
thank you. Kapena Hill, followed by Charlene Doi.
NOTE: Pause while Mr. Hill approached the laic.

MR. HILL: . . . Hi, my name is Kapena Hill. I'm actually working, but I'm representing myself.
I'm not here for any organization, but I'm here to testify in favor of the...the
medevac...the helicopter. And one of the things I want to say that if, compared to our air
ambulance service, which is a very different service. . .the air ambulance service
transport people between islands from clinics on the outlying islands to Oahu or to Maui.
The medevac is...the sole purpose for the medevac is for scene calls--Hana, Lanai,
Molokai, Kaupo. You can get to the hospital in seven minutes from Hana on the
helicopter, and it takes hours to arrange a flight and get somebody there from...from
Hana on the plane. So it saves a lot of time. It's been used for transfers, but its main
priority is for scene calls. So comparing it to the fixed wing services that we have, kind
of does it a injustice and makes it seem a lot less important since we have two other
providers who do that. So anyway, I know the money is tight and it's hard, but like they
were saying before, it's a service that's hard to take away. And once we lose it, it's
gonna be very hard to get it back. So. . .thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, questions for the testifier? Seeing none, thank
you again. Charlene Doi, followed by. . .Kawailehua LaBatto [sic].
MS. DOI: Hi, good evening. I'm Charlene Doi. I'm the Director at Kansha Preschool, and these
are the children that belong to our program. I want to say thank you, first of all, for all
the support that we have received from the County in the last three, four years. It's made
a tremendous amount of difference in our ability to do what we want to do for the
community After I submitted written testimony yesterday, I got a call asking for more
details about what our program really is like, and what it costs to run our program.
So. . .I have to say, truthfully, that the County funding is essential. . .to the survival of our
program. But I also want to let you know what else we've done. We have, because of
the economy, a fluctuating enrollment this year. And between 10 to 12 families have
done this, this year--we've had a donor campaign, annual donor campaign. We've gotten
two grants that we applied for and pleasantly received. And our families have done
fundraiser after fundraiser. We generally do three, and we've tripled the fundraisers
we've done this year. And...and with the hardworking board I have, and the number of
families we have, we've raised over $15,000 on our own within the school. So, you
know, I feel like we're working really hard to do what we need to do. We don't want to
lose the program 'cause if we go down, the intergenerational program disappears,
too--and that's the cornerstone of what we do. I give kudos to the families in our
program because they are working super hard, and I have a super hardworking
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board. . .also. And so from all of us, we know money is tight. . .we appreciate whatever
the County can do to support us, and thank you for your time.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members question for the testifier? Seeing none, thank
you again. Kawailehua LaBatto [sic], followed by Rosalie Yoshida.
NOTE: Pause while Miss LaBatte approached the mac.

MISS LaBATTE: . . . Aloha, my name is Kawailehua LaBatte. I am 12 years old, and go to Iao
Intermediate School. I am in the 7 th grade. I've been in the after school program with
Big Brothers Big Sisters for five years. I started as a little sister, and will be a big sister
soon. The after school program is an awesome...is awesome because it is a fun, safe
place to be. We do our homework, arts and crafts, play ukulele, play kickball, and go on
fun excursions. So please continue to support Big Brothers Big Sisters. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, questions for the testifier? Seeing none, thank
you. Rosalie Yoshida, followed by Kassel Taeza.
NOTE: Pause.

MS. YOSHIDA: . . . I'm Rosalie Yoshida and I'm here...I ride the MEO bus, and I'm here with
my friends. . .hoping that we will keep this up. When I retired several years ago and got a
hip operation, I decided not to drive anymore. I didn't want headlines to read, little old
lady drives into Longs.
ALL: ... (laughter).. .
MS. YOSHIDA: And I thought my daughter would be just thrilled to take me wherever I
wanted to go. Well, she was for a while. Then my neighbor suggested I start riding the
bus. I want you to do something that I would have children do when II. . . (laughter).. .
taught them. I want you to imagine or pretend. I'll start with pretend that you are this
gentlemen in his eighties, very spry, good mind yet, living at Roselani with the
love-of--his-life-for-60-years at Wailuku Hale Makua. He wanted to see her every day.
How could he go? Hop on the bus! He has a son that lives somewhere on Maui, but
doesn't see him often and didn't like to see mother, it depressed him. So this gentlemen
hops on the bus, charms all of us ladies on there, visits each one of us, and tells us his
story of how he was the chauffeur for a General for many years. And we like to hear his
stories, and we feel good when he tells us how we...good we look.
AUDIENCE: ... (laughter). . .
MS. YOSHIDA: We like him. Now. . .put yourself in the place of a widow or single lady in her
seventies or eighties. And you live alone and again, there are people who will run -MS. HAMMAN: Two minutes.
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MS. YOSHIDA: --errands for you, but you don't like to bother people. So you need to go to the
bank once a month, you need food, you need to go to the doctor, you need to go to the
eye doctor, you gotta get your prescriptions filled, and sometimes you need to get a
greeting card or gift for grandchild. So you hop on the bus. . .and you meet your pals,
and you compare your ailments, and you brag about your families; and when you go
shopping, you see people who you haven't seen for ages. The bus driver takes different
routes. You see what's happening. You see buildings. We never knew Walgreens was
there. And. . .it helps your mind. Now if we didn't have that. . .we would start not taking
a shower every day. Who's around us, who cares how we smell? We wouldn't go and
get our hair cut.
MS. HAMMAN: Three minutes.
MS. YOSHIDA: Nobody sees us. In short, we need that for our physical and mental. . .health.
Keep us...be alive, then we won't be a burden to you. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, questions for the testifier?
AUDIENCE: ... (applause). . .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Kassel Taeza, followed by Nathan Sales.
MS. TAEZA• Aloha Council Members. Thank you for your time. I know you guys had a long
and busy week. My name is Kassel Taeza, and I'm the program manager for Big
Brothers Big Sisters. Big Brothers Big Sisters offers three unique and amazing programs
that gives our adult and teen volunteers the opportunity to spend quality time, just
broadening horizons for our kids. With their positive one-on-one influence over our
littles, I have seen our littles accomplish many milestones. And in order for Big Brothers
Big Sisters to continue assisting our littles and bigs, we need your support. And I thank
you for your continued support, and I hope that we receive it again in the future. Mahalo.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, question for the testifier? Seeing none, thank
you again.
MS. TAEZA• Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Nathan Sales. . .followed by Cordy Racadio.
MR. SALES.
Good evening, County. . .Members. My name is Nathan Sales. I'm from the
MEO B.E.S.T. Reintegration Program. I want to say, through that...through the support
that you guys have donated to the program, there's quite a few things that happened in
my life--from being incarcerated for seven years and coming back into the community
One, I was liable [sic] to get my license. Two, I gotta go to...back to school and get my
education, and I also have an opportunity to work in the community now. Sorry I'm a
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little bit dirty, I just came from work. But through the support that you guys have helped
with the program, not only I have been a testifier, but many more before me and that are
still coming. Through the support that you guys donated, there's...the money is being
good, for good use because one, I came back to Maui with nothing. I had nothing, and
MEO allowed me to come to the program. . .with open arms to help me get on my feet.
And, to me, that's one blessing because I couldn't...if I was to be released, what would I
have? I would have nothing. I would have to start from scratch. But through that
program, I have actually started to get my feet on the ground and become a productive
member in this society. Through the program, the best thing that I...I found in myself is
the motivation to keep moving forward, and through that motivation, I have actually
found goals and opportunities of what I want in life. I want to go back to school
and. . .and continue working in the community And through that program, I was able to
get a first-hand start, and actually get the open door to do that. I want to thank each and
every one of you guys for being the support and the backbone for that program. Thank
you and you guys all have a good day.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members any questions? Excuse me, Nathan?
AUDIENCE: ... (applause)...
CHAIR PONTANILLA: We do have some questions for you. Member Kaho' ohalahala?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA: Thank you, Nathan. That was very impressive
to hear your story. I'm just wondering, have you participated in the Drug Court as well?
MR. SALES: Yes, I have.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA: You have. And you are coming out of a Drug
Court, going into the B.E.S.T program?
MR. SALES: Yes, I...I'm actually been incarcerated for seven years, and I'm doing a work
release furlough program through...at Maui Community Correctional Facility. I was in
Maui Drug Court before, but I failed because I made wrong choices. But I was given the
opportunity to do my time and through...go through a number of other programs on
Oahu. And then coming back, and due to my good behavior and the motivation that I
had, I was able to come back to Maui and find the support here, which I really needed.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA: Do you want to make just a brief comment about
the Drug Court?
MR. SALES: Umm, sure.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA: Did it...was it helpful to you even though that
you said that you failed it? Was it helpful to you?
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MR. SALES: Yes, it was very helpful because without...what I learned in Maui Drug Court was
the tools that I needed to...what I wanted. It gave me a fresh start. Do I want to keep
living the life on the streets or do I want something in life? It gave me an opportunity to
see what...what the addiction did to me, and what it's doing to my life. Through
that. . .it, I failed because I made the choice to go back out. The program, I can only say
good things for the program because the program that was there to help me. I didn't want
it at that time. But now if I...if I could turn back the hands of time, I would because what
I learned today is...is based on the roots of the support that the program has...has given
me.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO' OHALAHALA: Okay. Thank you very much.
MR. SALES: Thank you. You have a good day.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
AUDIENCE: ... (applause)...
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Cordy Racadio. . .followed by Ricky Magsayo.
MS. RACADIO: Aloha, everybody. My name is Cordy Racadio, and I'm a second year
AmeriCorps intern. I first started with AmeriComs. . .by being transferred with the MEO
youth services. . .summer employment program. And I would like to thank you for keep
funding them, and you know, giving them the opportunity to service the youths
throughout these years. AmeriCorps has given me the opportunity to serve my
community I am pleased to be a part of projects in which we restore native plants and
eradicate evasive species. Today I'm a member of the Na Ala Hele trails, which is a...is
a program that falls under the DLNR. Our crew, which consists of six people, cleans and
maintains trails throughout Maui County. Being an AmeriCorps intern, I have gained
knowledge about native plants and birds, along with CPR and first aid certification.
AmeriCorps has also provided me with basic helicopter training, and basic chainsaw
training. Because of this outstanding program, I have gained many experience and
knowledge in which will benefit me in my future. After my completion of AmeriCorps, I
will further my education, and use my educational awards toward college. With the
MEO programs available to our youths, they are given an opportunity to exceed and
youths...and gives the youths a fresh jump start in becoming successful people. I would
like to take this time to ask for continuing support and funding for MEO youth services
and transportation, so they can continue to provide programs and service for future
generations. Please do not cut MEO Transportation and charge a dollar for every trip.
Due to the economy changes, times have been really hard financially and a cut in the
MEO Transportation will make it harder for struggling families in our community
Mahalo.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier?
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AUDIENCE: ... (applause)...
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Seeing none, Ricky Magsayo, followed by Matthew Lilla.
MR. MAGSAYO: My name is Ricky Magsayo. Representing MEO B.E.S.T. program. I've
been in the system for eight years now, and slowly transitioning out to the community
My fear about coming out to the community was the lack of support, and proper
knowledge prior...being able to make it out there. I can probably say and thank so much
to MEO program for the support in helping me get a job, and paying my bills, and also
helping me with the program being very productive and responsible--something that I
know now that is a very important to me. MEO has helped me a lot, also still is helping
this day in being very consistent in what I want to do. I'm happy that MEO is there to
help and I thank them very much. And also thank you for the membership, I mean the
Council Members for. . .for this program. If wasn't for you guys, I wouldn't be here.
And I can live a productive life now as a citizen in this community
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, questions for the testifiers? Seeing none, thank
you.
MR. MAGSAYO: Thank you.
AUDIENCE: ... (applause)...
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Matthew Lilla, followed by Amanda Ray.
MASTER LILLA: . . . Good evening, Council Members. My name is Matthew Lilla. I am
speaking tonight on behalf of Hui Malama Learning Center.
. . . I'm speaking out to you tonight because I would like to make some very important
points about Hui Malama Learning Center. My first major point is personal. This is
because I personally attend Hui Malama GED prep class. I believe that is really an
excellent benefit for people like myself seeking opportunities that would not be available
without Hui Malama...Hui Malama Learning Center. My gained opportunity from Hui
Malama Learning Center is that I will be able to be done with school more than a year
early, whereas with high school, I'd spend a whole `nother year. This grants me the
possibility of going to MCC quicker, and gaining my degree much quicker. Hui Malama
is helping me reach this goal in my life, and I don't know what I would do without it. My
next point is that the youth services provides very important information for young adults
going out into the real world, such as myself seeking a job or a career. This class really
helps make it clear about how to obtain a career job, how to live healthy with your diet
and exercise, and even how to deal with personal finances as you get older. Finally, the
learning environment provided by Hui Malama is very good. We always have a
comfort...comfortable amount of space to work every day. The teachers are very, very
friendly, and always are willing to help you with any need--plus there's very...very much
cool water and cool ...(inaudible).... Thank you for your time.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier?
AUDIENCE: ...(applause)...
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Seeing none, thank you again.
AUDIENCE: . . .(applause). . .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Amanda Ray, followed by Desmond Yap.
NOTE: Pause while Ms. Ray approached the mic.

MS. RAY: . . . Hi, I apologize. It's so hard to hear back there So, my name is Amanda Ray,
and I am actually representating, representing Maui...MEO Headstart. This is
Christopher. My son has attended the program for two years. He has benefited this
program because he's actually a special needs student. He gets to learn what all the other
children are learning, and still receive special needs services for his disability. I do not
have to worry about him falling behind because the Headstart program offers this.
. . . I'm sorry. I feel very lucky that my son was able to be in Headstart--this is the last
year, and will be attending kindergarten in a few months--and feel that he is prepared for
it because he attended Headstart program. Please keep funding MEO Headstart because
our children need it. Thank you very much.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier?
AUDIENCE: ...(applause)...
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Seeing none, thank you.
. . . Desmond Yap . . .
AUDIENCE: . . .(applause). . .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: . . . followed by Emily Barton.
NOTE: Pause while Mr. Yap approached the mic.

MR. YAP: . . . Aloha, everybody. My name is Desmond Yap, and I'm here on behalf of Hui
Malama. This is pretty hard to listen to testimonies. It's like all...all of these non-profits
is all interconnected, so I see why this is real difficult. So aloha, Council. My name is
Desmond Yap, and I was born and raised here on the island of Maui. I have been through
the public school system. Since working at Hui Malama. . learning Center, where I
teach how to play music and sing--most of all I build character--I've seen great change in
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the students at Hui Malama. Some of our kids are lonely, misunderstood, and most of all,
heart broken. What we offer at Hui Malama, you can find no where else in the State.
Being a multi-cultural school, we use the Hawaiian culture as the base for all the students
to see themselves as one. Living here in Hawaii, they understand that they are the
example to the rest of the world on how every living person should live as we strive for
harmony amongst all cultures and races. In our music program, which started from
planning and production, our first performance was at Queen Kaahumanu Center, and I
was seeing these heartbroken kids open their eyes to a new sense of hope. They learn to
be patient and tolerant with one another and to be supportive. The importance of the
music program to these kids is having the opportunity to perform, and let their voices be
heard to a world they feel is not listening. I come from a house, like many of the local
people whose kids needed extra attention. Without Hui Malama, kids such as these have
nowhere else to go, 'cause you cannot find a program like this one. Hui Malama goes
beyond what it asks of it. I know because I am there . . .(laughter). . . and I will walk
with these kids to the deepest depths so see them achieve what they seem impossible, and
I know and confident they will do the same for their instructors who show them
guided...guidance from nowhere else at Hui Malama. So please, this is very difficult
decision, and God bless everybody here tonight, and we just pray for a lot of money so
we can give everybody money, but we need Hui Malama. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier?
AUDIENCE: ...(applause)...
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, again. Yeah, we're gonna pray for more money.
Emily Barton, followed by Isaac Kaina.
MS. BARTOW: . . . Good evening, Maui Council Members. My name is Emily Bartow. I'm
the Unit Director for the Central Boys and Girls Club. I'm here tonight to tell you how
the proposed budget cuts will impact our current programming. With the anticipation of
the cut to our County funding of 10 percent, the Central Boys and Girls Club is projecting
significant impacts on our programs that will ultimately affect over 500 families and
youths, ages 9 to 17 years old residing here in Central Maui. With the proposed cut,
Central Boys and Girls Club will have to relinquish one full-time or two part-time youth
development professionals. Our youth development professionals are responsible for
inspiring our youth members, especially those from disadvantaged circumstances to
realize their full potential as productive and responsible citizens. Currently, Central Club
provides programming in our five core areas: character and leadership the arts; education
and career development; health and life skills; and sports, fitness, and recreation. The
proposed cuts will have significant impact on the quality of program we offer. As a
result of the cuts, we'll be forced to cut out entire program areas, and decrease our daily
program attendance for the children. Central Boys and Girls Club would also be looking
at decreasing the amount of programming because we would need to shut down program
areas to increase staffing in other areas, which means program areas would be closed or
significantly under utilized. Every day we interact with the kids in a mentoring capacity.
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We sit down with them face-to-face, talk, play games, and help them with their
homework. Take a moment and think about that person when you were growing up that
always took a moment out of their busy day to check in with you. . .that person you felt
comfortable confiding in, sharing your special moments with, and who mentored you.
That's the person that. . .(end of tape, start 1B). . . With these proposed cuts, we'll be
losing that valuable fact-to-face time with them. Approximately 1,700 hours of face-toface time will be eliminated as a result of the proposed cuts. These are the times that we
mentor kids, help them make tough decisions, talk with them about real life problems,
issues and dilemmas, laugh and have fun creating life long memories. These valuable
opportunities, which make true difference for kids in Maui-MS. HAMMAN: Two minutes.
MS. BARTOW: --will be lost. Those mentors that many of us had while growing up will be
taken away and unavailable for Maui's youth. In addition, these cuts will also put us in a
very dangerous place for staff/kid ratios. We'll be facing a 50 to 1 ratio. Can you
imagine offering safe and effective programming for those types of numbers? The Boys
and Girls Club strives to offer premium programming, and 50 to 1 ratio would render that
impossible. In conclusion, the Central Boys and Girls Club will be...will strive to offer
the best...the very best programming and, with the proposed budget, and maintain a safe
environment for Maui's youth. Thank you very much.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, questions for the testifier? Seeing none, thank
you again. Isaac Kaina-AUDIENCE: ...(applause)...
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --followed by Michael Ban.
AUDIENCE: . . .(applause and cheers).. .
NOTE: Pause while Mr. Kaina approached the mac.

MR. KAINA: . . . Aloha, County Council Members-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Aloha.
MR. KAINA: --and ladies and gentlemens [sic] and kids. My name is Isaac Kaina, and I'm here
to talk about MEO Headstart. MEO Headstart, I think, you know, for everybody is very
valuable. I would think is very valuable because, you know, they help not only the kids,
but the parents as well. My kids go to the MEO Headstart, you know, they...they
educated my kids. My girl still goes there. And at the same time that they're getting
educated and getting them ready to transition to kindergarten, they also give me and my
wife a time to go to work and still be able to support for our family. You know, and I
think by cutting that off or, you know, many other families who didn't experience what
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I've experienced through that program, you know, it's gonna be a real big loss for them.
So, I'll just make this sweet. I think that, you know, that's a good program. I know that
it's a good program because I'm still in it today. I'd like to thank the MEO Headstart
people, everybody who work there. You know, I hope future families can experience
what I have. I like to thank County Council Members for giving me your time. Thank
you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Members, questions for the testifier?
AUDIENCE: ... (applause and cheers)...
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, again.
AUDIENCE: ... (applause and cheers)...
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Michael Ban. . .followed by Chantal Ratte.
. . . Michael Ban?
NOTE: Pause while Mr. Ban approached the ink.

MR. BAN: . . . Aloha, my name is Michael Ban. I'm the Athletic Director here at Maui High
School, and I want to just say thank you very much for allowing me to speak here today.
Maui High appreciates the support of the Kihei Youth Center and MEO Transportation.
Many of our students depends on MEO Transportation services to attend community
youth clubs, participate in sports, or to better their education. We have about 500
students...student athletes participating in sports. Many of the student athletes live in the
Kihei District and, of course, transportation is a constant issue. For
exampling. . .example, paddling is part of our local culture. It offers our student athletes
opportunity to shine, and be part of a team. During this past MIL paddling season, we
have worked closely with the Kihei Youth Center and MEO Transportation to help
support...transport many of our student athletes to Kihei Canoe Club. And we have seen
a growth in our numbers from 17 the previous year to 45, and it seems to be growing. I
feel the big reason is because of the transportation services provided by MEO and Kihei
Youth Center. We are very grateful for those programs. If it wasn't for them, many of
our athletes would not be able to participate, and a lot of them would be catching rides.
And I've seen this on YouTube where they catch rides and going home on the back of the
trucks, which is, of course, very dangerous, and we have addressed those issues. There
are a number of students who use the MEO bus services, not only for athletes but for
academic achievement. Students who participate in the marching band, EAST program,
and night school have used the MEO bus service at Maui High School, and these students
have the opportunity to graduate with their classmates thanks to the transportation
services provided by MEO. So, I know that you guys have a tough decision to make, but
I want to thank you for allowing me to speak here tonight. But having the MEO bus
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services have provided our youth. . .with the opportunity to better themselves--and that's
the message I want to send. Thank you very much.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, questions for the testifier?
AUDIENCE: ... (applause)...
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Seeing none, thank you again. Chantal Ratte, followed by
Nathan Rosberg.
NOTE: Pause while Ms. Ratte approached the mic.

MS. RATTE: . . . Good evening, Council Members. My name is Chantal Ratte. I am the
Executive Director with Ka Lima 0 Maui, and I just want to take this opportunity to
thank you for your support over the years of our County contracts that we have--grounds
and custodial services. Those contracts are crucial to our agency. They employ over 40
persons with disabilities. All those persons earn minimum wage or higher with full
benefits. I think it's remarkable, the partnership that we have, when you think about it,
because together the County, Ka Lima, and the community every day we get to put a
paycheck in a deserving hand. And I just really want to thank you for recognizing the
value in our partnership. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, questions for the testifier? If not,
Nathan Rosberg, followed by Jennifer Llanes.
. . . Pull down the mic. Thank you.
MR. ROSBERG: Mahalo.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aloha.
MR. ROSBERG: My name is Nathan Rosberg. I work at Ka Lima 0 Maui. I work long time,
and I like to spend money from Ka Lima 0 Maui, and custodian work and. . .I like to
clean and make the money. And I'm a sanitary work from Chantal. Mahalo.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
AUDIENCE: ... (applause)...
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Jennifer Llanes, followed by Sally Keanini.
MS. LLANES: Aloha.
UNIDENTIFIED COUNCILMEMBER: Aloha.
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MS. LLANES: My name is Jennifer and I have been working for two...Ka Lima 0 Maui for
two years. I am a part of custodial crew, and our job is cleaning...cleaning the bathrooms
in the park. My job at Ka Lima--because I get to work with other people and enjoy
activities. I like to be around with people and help out. A paycheck allows me to go
shopping and to travel to the Big Island. Thanks for your supporting...thanks for your
supporting at Ka Lima 0 Maui.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Sally Keanini, followed by Joe Keanini.
MS. KEANINI: Hi, my name is Sally Keanini. I work for the County of Maui for help them
clean parks and stuff. We weed eat, lawn mower, rake, and we do more cleaning up and
stuff like that. And we need more support, if we can. And what I do with my money, I
pay bills and stuff like that. So that's what I need the money for. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
AUDIENCE: ... (applause)...
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Joe Keanini. . .followed by Jesse Rios.
MR. KEANINI: . . . My name is Joseph Keanini. I do the same thing as my wife, and. . .we try
hard to keep the parks clean. And I know the County wants us to keep going. And I pay
bills and buy groceries. And that's all I get for say. Thank you. Mahalo.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
AUDIENCE: ... (applause)...
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you for keeping our parks clean. Jesse Rios, followed by
Rusty Miranda.
NOTE: Pause.

MASTER RIOS: . . . Good evening. My name is Jesse Rios. I'm a 10th grader at Maui High. I
participate in football, paddling, and track. I'm here to speak on behalf of the athletes
that use the MEO bus services to catch a ride home, go to paddling practice, or visit the
community youth centers in Kihei. During the paddling season, I use the MEO bus to
catch a ride home and to Kihei Canoe Club for high school paddling practices.
My. . .Maui High and Baldwin High Schools have shared the MEO bus to Kihei Youth
Center. The bus was packed with paddlers almost every day. Because we shared the
MEO bus, we created a tighter bond between the two paddling schools, and I have gained
a lot of new friends. Paddling has taught me many new things. I learned to respect the
ocean, and I have gained a deeper appreciation of the Hawaiian culture. My coaches
have taught us how to rig and steer our canoes. I understand that team work is important
if we want to be successful. Each seat has a specific role, and over the course of the
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season, I was able to develop my leader skills...leadership skills. If I didn't participate in
paddling, I probably wouldn't have played sports. It also kept me out of trouble.
. . . I don't have my license and I can't drive, so I need the MEO-CHAIR PONTANILLA: . . .(laughter). . .
MASTER RIOS: --bus . . . (laughter). . . to get me to practice. There are other athletes at Maui
High that use the MEO bus. I've seen athletes and football and judo waiting for the bus
for...bus after practice. Many of them wouldn't be able to participate if it wasn't for the
MEO bus. I hope the MEO bus services continues on Maui. Many of us would love to
participate in sports, community events, and summer programs. Thank you for
supporting MEO bus funds. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Question for you from Mr. Victorino.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: . . . Jesse, how many times a week do you normally catch
the bus...the MEO bus?
MASTER RIOS: Monday through Friday.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: So, three-MASTER RIOS: Every day.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Every day?
MASTER RIOS: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: To take you down to Kihei-MASTER RIOS: Yeah, to Kihei and brings-COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: --and bring you...what-MASTER RIOS: --and brings you back to War Memorial, and then, yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: So, maybe two or three times a day?
MASTER RIOS: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: As least that many
MASTER RIOS: Twice...yeah, twice.
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: At least twice, yeah?
MASTER RIOS: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay, thank you.
MASTER RIOS: Okay. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Uh. . .Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you, Chair, and thank you very much, Jess, for being here.
It's good to hear from the people who use the bus. And I want to ask you a question, and
if you can answer it, you know, if you're...if it's something you're not prepared to
answer that's okay.
MASTER RIOS: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: But you know there's talk about...in the current budget, the
proposal is to charge everybody who rides the MEO bus a dollar. And that's every time
you get on the bus you pay a dollar. Now we're very concerned about that and we want
to hear from people like yourself--the youth who use the bus, as well as others. How
would that affect you, and would you still be able to use the bus as often as you do, if we
did that?
MASTER RIOS: Well, me and my sister paddle, so that's like $4 a day, right, so times that by
five, that's like 20 right there, 20 bucks a week. Probably not, I don't know, my parents
would like yeah, I don't think so...so, yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA. Well, thank...thank you for your honest answer-MASTER RIOS: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: --because we need to know that. We're going to have to try and
work with something to work out a... you know, some alternative, but we need to hear
from you guys because we want you to use the bus. Obviously, the benefits are great.
Thank you.
MASTER RIOS: All right. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you...thank you again, Jesse.
AUDIENCE: ... (applause)...
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Rusty Miranda, followed by Courtney Lau Hee.
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NOTE: Pause.

MASTER MIRANDA: . . . Good evening, Chair Pontanilla, and Members of the Budget
Committee. My name is Rusty Miranda, and I'm 12 years old, and I attend Maui Waena
Intermediate School. I am here to thank you for your continuous support and funding of
MEO youth service and MEO Transportation. I have been in the MEO youth service for
two years now. I like doing community service because we get to meet other youths
from different parts of the island, and it feels good at the end of the day because I know
in my heart that I made a difference in the aina. We also learn to be self-sufficient.
Uncle Alex Bode teaches us how to identify different types of plants, and how to care for
them. He teaches us the value of agriculture, and how to take care of ourselves. We get
to have hands on activities, like planting, cleaning and sustaining crops. All those skills
that I learn from Uncle Alex has inspired me to make a garden for my family. Instead of
buying fruits and vegetables from the store, we can get it from our backyard. I really
enjoy those things because it's fun, and we get a lot of knowledge and wisdom from
Uncle Alex. I am thankful for this program because instead of staying at home doing
nothing, roaming the streets, or getting busted for something, I can go to MEO youth
service and actually do something productive with my life. I have learned how to be
resistant to alcohol and drugs, and we also have tobacco prevention programs at MEO,
and they come to our school to teach the kids there, too, about the harmful effects of
tobacco. With CPR and first aid training and certification that we received at MEO youth
service, it encourages me to study harder and get good grades to become a doctor one
day. This is how I plan to be giving back to the community I hoping that in the future,
health insurance will be more affordable so I will be able to help more people in need.
I've heard from my friends that you are thinking of charging a dollar for every ride on the
Maui Bus and the MEO bus. I use the bus almost every day to be around the island and
to get to MEO youth service. My mom will not be able to afford the-MS. HAMMAN: Two minutes.
MASTER MIRANDA: -- extra expense for bus fare. So that mean's I'm not gonna be able to
go to MEO youth service, and that would be hurtful to me, and possibly by future. So
please reconsider the bus fees. Thank you for allowing me to speak tonight, and I know
you will make the right decisions for the youth. Have a good evening. Mahalo.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier?
AUDIENCE: ... (applause)...
CHAIR PONTANILLA: If not, thank you again. Courtney Lau Hee, followed by
Kathleen Cord.
. . . And if Kathleen Cord could come up and sit on this bench, and get ready to hit that
mic?
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NOTE: Pause.

MISS LAU HEE: . . . Good evening, Chair Pontanilla and Members of the Budget Committee.
My name is Courtney Lau Hee. I'm 12 years old and attend Maui Waena as a 7 th grader.
I have been a volunteer at MEO for one year, and a participant for two. I'm here to thank
you for your continuous support on the...on the MEO youth service and transportation. I
was really excited when I became a participant because when I went working with the
program, I could get a stipend. By getting a stipend, they taught me life skills, like
saving money and budgeting. We actually have a competition to see who can save the
most money in our bank account. I really enjoy doing our prevention program because it
teaches me all the bad things that can happen to me, my friends, and family. The best
prevention event we had...we did at the MEO youth service was our haunted house, with
the help of the Carpenters Union. We built the scariest alcohol awareness haunted house
on the island. It was so much fun and so successful. We plan on doing it again this year.
A lot of people came to the haunted house more than once because it was scary and
informative. They learned a lot by going through it. We even had a crashed car at the
end to show how fatal DUI can be. I appreciate all that MEO youth service has done for
me. With all the skills that the staff and volunteers have taught us, I know I'll be a
respectful and successful adult when I get older. We've learned by living pono you will
always feel good about yourself, and in turn the people around you will feel the same
way. I know the values that are taught to us will be carried on through me and the rest of
the MEO youths. Our goal at MEO youth service is stop the negativity that is around us,
and be...by being a youth mentor. I will help my...meet that goal as possible. I've heard
that you may charge a dollar to ride the MEO and Maui Bus. Personally, I don't think
that's a good idea because we use the bus almost every day, and we are not going to be
able to pay a dollar every time we ride the bus. It's too expensive for me and my friends.
Our families are already having a hard...having a hard time financially, so for sure we're
not going to be able to pay for bus fare. And that means we're not gonna be able to go to
MEO youth service. That's too sad to think about. . .because a lot of us depend on MEO
youth service. So please consider the bus fees and don't cut the funding for MEO youth
service and MEO Transportation. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier? Seeing none,
thank you.
AUDIENCE: ... (applause)...
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Kathleen Cord, followed by Leslie Zane.
MS. L. ZANE: Actually, my name is Leslie Zane. I'm cutting in front of Kathleen, 'cause she's
not here-COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Oh-oh.
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MS. L. ZANE: --so since I'm next, hey, it's kill two birds with one stone. I am a parent of a
child who goes to the Boys and Girls Club. Through this program, she has. . .grown up
to be a very. . .independent and mature child through this program. She's learned how to
volunteer and give back to her community--which I was raised to do from my family. So
I'm very proud, and I want to say thank you for giving her that opportunity in supporting
such a good cause. I sat there in the back and I'm listening to everybody talk about how
"please don't cut our programs", "please don't do this", and I said, oh gosh, what am I
doing here, until I heard the Director of the Boys and Girls Club say that if it is cut back,
50 to 1. . .50 children to one adult, and I almost fainted. I said I cannot even handle 50
adults to my one self . . .(laughter). . . let alone 50 children to one adult. And I know it's
very difficult for you folks to really siphon out and decide how much money to give what
program and what to cut, what not to cut. It's a tough job, but please consider keeping it
as medium as possible . . .(laughter). . . Fifty children to one adult. Please, try to think
about yourself in that position of, aaahhh!, whose kid goes where, and who goes what. I
tell you if, if not a lot of children will be at home. Crime rate will probably be sky
rocketing. I'm not a parent to keep my child at home. I will do whatever it takes to keep
her active in a program. She does use the MEO bus as well to go to paddling. I keep her
as active and as busy as I can. So good luck . . .(laughter). . . but thank you so much
. . .(laughter). . . for this time. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, questions for the testifier?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you.
MS. L. ZANE: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you very much.
AUDIENCE: ... (applause)...
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Dawn...Dawn Lyman, followed by Noah Splajt.
. . . Dawn Lyman, and if Noah can come up forward?
NOTE: Pause.

MS. LYMAN: . . . Hello. . .my name is Dawn Lyman, and I am here...oh, can you? Up?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Pull it up.
MS. LYMAN: I'll take it out. Can you hear me okay?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah.
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MS. LYMAN: Okay. My name is Dawn Lyman, and I am here for the Boys and Girls Club. I
have two step daughters, ages 11 and 13, who attend Central Maui Boys and Girls Club.
The girls have been members for nearly two years now, and I am here tonight to tell you
what a wonderful impact the Club has had on all of our lives.
. . . Let me just take this out. The girls' father and I work outside of the home, and more
often than not end our days after 5:00 p.m. Leaving the girls home alone from the time
school ends to the time we return home, or in the case of summer vacation, all day, is just
not an option. Images of the girls inflicting bodily harm on one other, or the house
possibly catching fire, do come to mind. So no, leaving the girls home alone is definitely
not an option. The girls used to go to another after school program, but as we have fallen
on harder economic times, our family, as well as many others, have suffered a bit
financially. The monthly payments for their after school care became increasingly
difficult to fulfill. In addition, the girls were quickly approaching the age limit when they
would no longer be accepted into the program. When we heard about Boys and Girls
Club, it seemed to be the answer to our prayers. We even worried it was almost too good
to be true. We signed them up regardless and haven't had a worry since. The Club has
provided our daughters with a safe, well supervised haven to go to each day after
school . . .
. . . and throughout the days of summer vacation. We are extremely thankful for all that
the Club has provided for our family, including for instance, Power Hour. Power Hour
insures that the girls sit down and get a jump start on any of that homework that they may
have that day. This teaches them a little self-discipline, and helps with that
procrastination bug the girls seemed to have caught. We are also thankful for all the
wonderful activities our girls have had the opportunity to take part in--from the daily
sham battles and football games, to the special excursion, to beaches, dances, and hiking
trails. These are experiences -MS. HAMMAN: Two minutes.
MS. LYMAN: --that help to enrich their lives and experiences they probably wouldn't have
without Boys and Girls Club. Throughout their time at the Club, the girls have had the
chance to forge many new friendships, and have had the chance to meet children from
other neighboring schools. Lastly, we are perhaps the most impacted by the relationships
they've formed with the Club supervisors. These supervisors have been such a wonderful
and positive role model for the girls. They are there to help with homework, listen to
concerns or problems, give advice when needed, give praise when a job is well done, and
scoldings when they step out of line. They truly care. . .not just about our girls, but about
all of the other members as well. It is a comfort to know that these wonderful people are
there to watch over our children when we are not able to. There really isn't a better place
than Boys and Girls Club for our girls to go, and we truly wouldn't know what to do
without them. So thank you for listening, and your continued support.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: . . . Thank you. Members, any questions? Ma'am--
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MS. LYMAN: Oh, sorry.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --question for you.
MS. LYMAN: Yes?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Real quickly. Do your...do your children use the bus
system?
MS. LYMAN: Yes, they do.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: The MEO bus?
MS. LYMAN: Yes. Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: So this would be a tremendous impact if you had to pay a
dollar on top of everything else?
MS. LYMAN: Absolutely, absolutely.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay, thank you.
MS. LYMAN: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
AUDIENCE: ... (applause)...
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Noah. . .followed by Raquel Zane.
MASTER SPLAJT: . . . Hello, Maui Council Members. I am Noah Splajt, and I am ten years
old, and I go to Wailuku Elementary School. I am in the fifth grade. I like Boys and
Girls Clubs because it gives me a place to go after school for only $5, plus I get to hang
out with my friends and do my homework. This is the only after school program I've
been able to attend that's only $5 a year.
. . . They are always open, on most holidays and breaks, and school days off, like
furlough Fridays. They are open all day from 8:00 in the morning to 6:00 at night. I
think it's a good for our parents for...with hardly any money, or parents who can't look
after their kids because they have to work late. This is why I like the Boys and Girls
Clubs. Thank you very much.
AUDIENCE: ...(applause)...
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, questions for the testifier? Seeing none, thank
you again.
AUDIENCE: ...(applause)...
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Raquel Zane, followed by Kalikiano Carson.
MISS R. ZANE: Good evening, Maui County...County Council Members. My name is
Raquel Zane, and I am 15 years old, and I am sophomore at Baldwin High School. I go
to the Central Boys and Girls Club, and I have been a member for the past five years. I
like going to the Club because it is a very convenient for my mother and I. My mom is a
single parent, and with us living Upcountry and her job being in Kahului, it really helps
us out. Because of the Club, I am able to participate in MIL sports. I can go to the Club
after I'm done with practice to wait for my mom, when she is done with work. I can also
go to the Club after school and get something to eat before I head to practice. The Club
gives me a chance to do a lot of things I wouldn't be able to do. The Club also gives me
the opportunity to give back to the community Through the Club, I have been able to be
a part of fundraisers, food drives, feeding the homeless, recycling projects, and many
more. I have also been able to go on many different job shadows and career
opportunities to help me gain some direction as to what I would like to do after I graduate
from high school. The Boys and Girls Club has been a very important part of my life. It
is because of the caring and supportive staff, my mom and I am so grateful. Thank you
very much for supporting our Club.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, questions for the testifier? Thank you again.
AUDIENCE: ...(applause)...
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Kalikiano Carson, followed by Kathrynn Weatherspoon.
MASTER CARSON: Aloha, Maui County...aloha, Maui County Council Members. My name
is Kalikiano Carson. I am 14 years old, and a freshman currently attending Maui High
School. I attend the Central Boys and Girls Club of Maui, and have been attending for
five years. The Club is a very special place to me because I have learned many things. I
have overcome many personal problems with the help of the Club. Some of the things
that I have learned include lifting weights using the proper form, improving my
basketball skills, and to be a better person in conflicting situations. Now if you will, I
would like to, I would to tell you a little about my background. Growing up, I've had a
lot of trouble controlling my anger, socializing, interacting with other kids, and
expressing myself in a safe and positive way. Being at the Boys and Girls Club has
helped me to be...has helped me to find good constructive ways of expressing my
emotions--like going for a jog when I'm upset, taking time out and using words to
express my feelings. Thanks to the Boys and Girls Club, I am now able to socialize and
interact with other kids. It is because of the Boys and Girls Club I am no longer afraid to
be myself. By being myself, I have been able to find a new...a passion in dancing.
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I'm...I'm really good at dancing, and now is one of my many coping skills. Through
dancing, I have met many new people and made many new friends. Thank you for taking
your...taking this time to listen to my testimony and your continued. . .continued support
of this wonderful organization. My name is Kalikiano Carson, and I approve this
message.
ALL: . . .(laughter and applause).. .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, questions for the testifier?
AUDIENCE: . . .(applause). . .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: . . . Thank you very much. . . .(laughter). . .
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: . . .(inaudible). . .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Kathrynn Weatherspoon, followed by Ruth...Ruth Lei Sacks.
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: . . .(inaudible). . .
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Ho, he running for politics.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: . . .(laughter). . .
MISS WEATHERSPOON: . . . Aloha, Maui County Council Members. My name is
Kathrynn Weatherspoon, and I am 11 years old, and I'm a fifth grader at Lihikai
Elementary School. I attended the Central...Central Boys and Girls Club, and I have
been a member for three years. The Club means a lot to me because I can do my
homework and catch up with my work during Power Hour. I can play fun sports and lots
of games. All of the staff is nice and very helpful. Thank you for continuing to support
our local Boys and Girls Clubs.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Members, questions for the testifier? Seeing none, thank you.
AUDIENCE: ... (applause)...
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Ruth Lei Sacks. . .followed by SarahLynn Bower.
MS. SACKS: . . . Hi. You know, I'm Ruth Lei, and I never realized that MEO covered all these
different programs. And I have worked for Headstart in Hauula and Laie. I've worked
for Boys and Girls Clubs in California. I just returned here. I'm a local girl
. . .(laughter). . . But I just came back in November, and I'm standing for the MEO
Transportation system, including Ala Hou, especially, and the dialysis and medical,
okay? And I'm speaking for two people, also my dad, who is 91 and he couldn't be here
tonight. But, dad was one of the founders of this program, and things like the Boys and
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Girls Club under Cameron Center. . .so I'm gonna close with a little word from him. But
I. . .came back to Maui, family emergency, and about a year and a half ago, I had what
they call a TIA, right, a minor stroke. They never diagnosed it. Everything was negative,
but obviously something happened. I lost my hearing in my right ear. You can see I
have contractions all the way down. Now, this is a good day. On a bad day, you don't
wanna see me coming, driving . . .(laughter). . . okay. And I. . .on a good day, I can
walk. I have good days where, you know, I get on the MEO bus and they go, ho, the
nerve . . .(laughter). . . you know, what's wrong with her. But then, I have really bad
days where it's so slow and I really need help even getting on the bus. Okay, that being
said, I just started this program. . .end of February, and I cannot believe how good they
are. Okay, and sadly I just read about...Maui News yesterday, 748,000 gone already. It's
a given, right. So I'm looking at it and I tell you. . . (end of tape, start 2A). . .Maui Bus is
not gonna handle. You can charge $2, $4, Maui Bus has a schedule. Maui Bus has a
loop. Maui Bus has people that are not challenged that have to go to work-MS. HAMMAN: Two minutes.
MS. SACKS: --you know. I. . .I really would hope that you liaison with the drivers. The, the
women that work in MEO, in the office, they're the ones that know us. They get to know
us. They know the needs, okay. They can figure out--what you need to do is streamline,
okay. Hana, three days a week. No, now they got their own dialysis machines How
about two days a week or maybe one day a week, you get a ride in, we take you around
central, holo holo all your little errands, and then, you know . . .(laughter). . . take your
rice and go home. ... (laughter)... But, I mean I have a lot of ideas. Now, my dad, like I
say, he was active when he was active in sponsoring, in organizing these programs. He
never dreamed, at 91, that he was going to be calling MEO for a ride. . .you know
. . .(laughter). . . He never would have thought of it. But it's a fact of life. And he
pointed out tonight, he said look, you know. . .you were crabbing the other day, ohana
this, ohana that, but it is an island, it's automatic ohana. Okay.
MS. HAMMAN: Three minutes.
MS. SACKS: But, our ohana is getting senior. My great age, the baby boomers coming up. We
need this stuff, you know. Like I say, there's no other program that's gonna take three
wheelchairs, and strap 'em in, and everybody understands they may run late, but at least
we get 'ern to dialysis, we get 'ern to medical. We get them groceries, for God's sake.
Okay, so even liaison, his other idea-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Excuse me, can you conclude, please?
MS. SACKS: Yeah, I'm sorry. Well, his other idea, though, which I thought was good was, you
know, he said when it started, we got lot of support, lot of donations. Well, these are
tough times, you know, even the high maka makas, they watching purse strings. But if
we can get a liaison out like Maui News, Maui Bulletin--if you get a blank space, you
didn't get an Advertiser, maybe think of us. . :cause people aren't donating. A lot of
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people aren't aware anymore, MOE and how much we need their help in the community
So, you know, whatever it takes, but don't throw the baby out with the bathwater and
cancel the transportation. I see...I see wonderful things.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay, thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: . . .(laughter). . .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Members, any questions for the testifier? Excuse me-MS. SACKS: Yes?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --question.
MS. SACKS: Oh.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Have you used the Paratransit system yet, the one the Maui
Bus offers?
MS. SACKS: Yeah, I have, but you know it's hard...
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Speak into the mic, please.
MS. SACKS: Oh, I'm sorry.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you.
MS. SACKS: I'm sorry.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No, no problem.
MS. SACKS: Okay. Our problem is that we're trying to move down 'cause Wailuku
Heights--now my parents are 90. My mom's in Hale Makua. You know we cannot, he
cannot holo holo.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah.
MS. SACKS: I have days where I cannot, I mean even to get groceries. Okay, yeah, we're
trying to move down -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Right.
MS. SACKS: --but we may as well be in Haiku . . . (laughter).. .
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Right. No, I just wanted to ask you, and I understand that.
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MS. SACKS: I use the shuttle.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay.
MS. SACKS: I use the shuttle two days a week, at least, Ala Hou, at least two days a week.
And -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay.
MS. SACKS: --Saturday, that's the other thing, sometimes it's 4 to 8 program. How necessary
is it?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay.
MS. SACKS: Let's assess.
COUNCILMEMBERVICTORINO: Okay.
MS. SACKS: You know, right now they're helping us out. I go see mom at Hale Makua -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay.
MS. SACKS: --so does dad.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay, and then the last thing I wanted to mention to you
is, nothing's for sure. The Mayor's budget was given to us, and we're going to now work
on it. So nothing's for sure, okay? We make sure the for-sure comes true, and hopefully
that will be good for everybody.
MS. SACKS: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: So we'll do our best. Okay? Thank you.
MS. SACKS: Okay. Thank you.
AUDIENCE: ... (applause)...
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
AUDIENCE: ...(applause)...
CHAIR PONTANILLA: SarahLynn Bower, followed by Tracy Souza.
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MS. BOWER: Aloha, I'm SarahLynn Bower, and I'm representing Hale 0 Lanakila Clubhouse
and myself.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Can't hear.
MS. BOWER: Aloha, honorable Council Members.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Can you talk directly into the mic? Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah.
MS. BOWER: This better? Wow, I can hear that now . . .(laughter). . . Okay, I'm SarahLynn
Bower and I'm representing both Hale 0 Lanakila Clubhouse and myself. Aloha,
honorable Council Members. I'm asking you for your assistance regarding proposed fare
increases for the public bus and MEO Transportation systems here on Maui. We need
your help. I represent Lanakila Club and we all live on a fixed income and have certified
disabilities. My expenses alone come to more than $930, which includes my rent, food,
phone, transportation, and medical co-pays. I normally receive $945 per month and can
save only $15 a month if I am lucky. My own disability income is much more than those
I am representing, whose disability check is much lower than mine it is about an
average of 460 a month. Increasing bus fares will cause more of a financial stress beyond
what I am currently experiencing since my monthly expenses allow me to just barely
meet my income. I am representing a group of people whose disabilities are not visible.
For example, some of my own are heart problems, severe Post Traumatic Stress
Disorder...Post Traumatic Stress Order [sic], panic attacks...these are just a few of them.
Some of us in this group live in a group home or care home and require transportation to
be able to get out of the house, as required for several hours to be able to attend programs
and such. I also want to address the public bus system proposals which many of us also
utilize. We are very concerned about losing our bus passes. Some of us only use public
transportation and can barely afford the current bus pass fee. Taking this bus pass away
and making us pay each and every time we board a bus is an undue hardship we cannot
stand. One of our members comes in from Napili and has to pay $6 each way right now,
and if the bus passes were eliminated--he gets the monthly pass, which you can save like,
I think about $20 a month that way. I understand-NOTE: Feedback from sound system.

MS. BOWER: I understand . . .(laughter).. . the economic situation and agree that everyone
should...I understand the economic situation and agree that everyone should and needs to
help out, but I appreciate your help in keeping it affordable. Thank you for your time and
attention. Mahalo.
AUDIENCE: ...(applause)...
NOTE: Feedback from the sound system.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you . . .(inaudible). . .
NOTE: Feedback from the sound system.

MS. BOWER: It's one of 'em . . . (laughter).. .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: That's good. Thank you. I need to apologize for that squeak.
Member Baisa, question for you?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you, Chair. Thank you very much. . . . (inaudible).. .
MS. BOWER: Hello, hello.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Oh, this died. Do you have a copy of your testimony
. . .(inaudible). . .

MS. BOWER: Yes, I do. I-COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: I couldn't hear you, and it's a very good testimony.
MS. BOWER: Can you hear me? Can you hear me?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: No, nothing's working.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No.
MS. BOWER: Can you hear? Ooh. Thank you. Yes, I do have —
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: I'd like to have it.
MS. BOWER: --letter for you, and also letters from each...most of, some of our Clubhouse
members of how. . .the proposals for...to cut back on the Maui Bus alone...that is our
own stories, each one.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: If you could please leave those, because you have -MS. BOWER: Oh, yes.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: --you have very important testimony, but we can't hear it. Thank
you.
MS. BOWER: Yes, I brought them specifically for each of you.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you.
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MS. BOWER: Just one copy . . . (inaudible).. .
NOTE: Feedback from the sound system.

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: ...(laughter)... Thank you.
MS. BOWER: Okay, just give it over here or-COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: You can leave it with the Secretary.
MS. BOWER: Okay, thank you very much.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yeah. Thank you.
NOTE: Feedback from the sound system.

COUNCILMEMBER

: Whew. . .terrible.

NOTE: No audio.

CHAIR PONTANILLA: . . . Is this on?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Take a break.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: It's not on.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Break.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: . . .(inaudible). . .
MS. HAMMAN: Test.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: . . .(inaudible). . .
NOTE: Feedback from the sound system.

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: We have a real problem here.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA: We should get a better system.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: You know that sound is horrible.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA: Yeah.
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COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: I mean, it's hard for the people wanna hear, too, and they cannot,
yeah, so it's frustrating for them.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO' OHALAHALA: Yeah.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: We're gonna take a recess for . . .
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Five minutes.
MS. HAMMAN: Testing.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: . . . five minutes to correct the sound system, so please hang on. This
meeting is in recess. . . (gavel).. .

RECESS:

7:45 p.m.

RECONVENE:

7:52 p.m.

CHAIR PONTANILLA: . . . (gavel). . . Thank you, ladies and gentlemen, for. . .being so patient
with us.
. . . Before the seniors from the Wailuku Hongwanji leave, I, I just want to say thank you
for coming. I know it's been a long night, so again I just want to recognize you folks'
presence, so thank you.
AUDIENCE: ...(applause)..
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay, the next testifier this evening is Tracy Souza, followed by
Elsie Santos and Donna Saito.
MR. SOUZA: Hello, my name is Tracy Souza. I'm here today to please ask the County of Maui
to continue funding both the Ala Hou transportation program, operated by MEO, and also
the ADA Paratransit service, operated by Robert's of Hawaii. The Ala Hou program is
specially for people on wheelchairs, walkers, blind, and anyone else who cannot find
transportation because of their disabilities. MEO's Ala Hou program also provides
transportation to and from dialysis and cancer treatment centers. This is so important for
you to understand the MEO van drivers provide each client with the special extra care to
get them safely to and back from their appointments. . .into their homes. The physical
toll taken on their bodies after the hours spent at dialysis and cancer treatment centers,
bodies are just drained from everything. The ADA Paratransit service also was created
for the same purpose--helping Maui's people, the disabled elderly community with
curbside pickups. But they aren't that special need, extra service that is needed for the
dialysis and cancer doctor appointments that MEO provides. More bus drivers are
needed to continue helping one another. More people are moving to Maui are disabled
and elderly. Numbers are growing every year. Now even my dad and mom uses the
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ADA Paratransit service. Dad had a double heart bypass surgery, needs transportation to
and from the doctor's office on his wheelchair. Legs and body are weak, needs to do
rehab to increase his strength so he can walk again.
.. . We are lucky to have good, reliable Maui transportation. Please don't cut the
transportation budget. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, questions for the testifier? Seeing none, thank
you very much.
AUDIENCE: ... (applause).. .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Elsie Santos. . .and Donna Saito, if you can come up?
NOTE: Pause while Ms. Santos approached the mic.

MS. SANTOS: . . . Good evening. My name is Elsie Santos, with an "s".
. . . Thank you. Thanks, Nani. Okay, I just want to speak briefly, and I just want to say
how important transportation for people on a wheelchair because of our wheelchair.
Actually, it's our feet, because without this we cannot walk, and without the
transportation to carry us, we cannot go no place. . .doctors, to our groups. I'm part of
Maui Wheelers, the Maui...Ohana Wheelers, and I'm on the Commission, as a member,
for the people with disabilities. And I just want to say, there's always solutions to help
the children, the elderly, and the people with disability. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, questions for the testifier? Seeing none,
Donna Saito, followed by Clement Sabagaba.
MS. SAITO: . . . Hi. Good evening, my name is Donna Saito, and I'm here to tell you how I
benefit from the MEO Transportation system. I can go to my doctors' appointments. I
can go to dialysis, you know, three times a week. I can go to physical and occupational
therapy twice a week. You know, I, I went to the hospital for outpatient surgery. MEO
got me there, you know, on time and safely. You know, the one time I, I couldn't take
the MEO bus, you know, during the tsunami, the County shut down the water and sewer
treatment plant, so the dialysis center closed. So my chair time was moved from
Saturday to Sunday, and I had to scramble to find a way to dialysis treatment. And I
finally found, like, a taxi van service that could take me in the wheelchair, but it
costed [sic] me like $71. You know, from the foster family house in Kahului to go to the
doctor's office, it cost $81. You know, so that...I can't be, I can't afford that all the time.
So. . .you know, thank you for your time and consideration.
. . . Okay.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, questions for the testifier? Seeing none, thank
you again for being here.
AUDIENCE: ... (applause). . .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Clement-AUDIENCE: ... (applause). ..
CHAIR PONTANILLA: ...Clement Sabagaba. . .followed by Theresa Lum.
MR. SABAGABA: My name is Clement Sabagaba and I'm from Ilima. I want to catch the bus
from MEO because it's easier for me. And I have to go a doctors...I have to go to three,
four doctors a month.
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: . . .(inaudible). . .
MR. SABAGABA: Okay, thank you. Three or four doctors a month, and I need the
transportation, so please don't cut off MEO cause I really need 'em. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier? Seeing none,
thank you. Theresa Lum?
AUDIENCE: ... (applause). . .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Theresa Lum, followed by Ellen Kamaka.
NOTE: Pause while Ms. Lum approached the mic.

MS. LUM: . . . Good evening, my name is Theresa...behalf of MEO Transportation. I've been
taking MEO Transportation since 1982 when I was working for Ka Lima 0 Maui, and I
remember when they first started out. Flo was...Flo and Albert was the first two drivers
that started out with the...with their shuttle. And I been...and I been, you know, MEO
has been giving me excellent service. And I use their services to go, to go outings and
you know, to go shopping, doctors, you know. I need to get out 'cause if I stay home...if
I stay home, I just...that's like therapy for me, to go out. So I need MEO services. And
they also...they also do extra services for the handicapped fair day, and I need...that's
what I use their services for as well. MEO has done an excellent job, not only for me, but
also for the people that are elderly, the handicaps. And but for me, I'm on a low-income
budget. And if...and I don't...I don't make that much a month, and if you...if
they...they cut out MEO services or raise the. . .the budget [sic], it's gonna be hard for
me to get around, and it's like...it's sad for me. It's like I don't know where I'm gonna
go after that, and I like to go to Wal-Mart, too, to shop. That's my favorite place.
And. . .to tell you the truth, the people at Wal-Mart, they treat me like family, and I
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appreciate what they do for me there, too, as well. So please don't raise the funds or
cut...cut off MEO because I've...I've experienced...don't put -MS. HAMMAN: Two minutes.
MS. LUM: -- them down, but I've experienced Roberts' services. And Roberts' services can't
beat what MEO bus drivers can do for me. The. . .the door-to-door service, excellent,
courteous service. They help me on and off the bus, and help me to get to where I want
to go. So MEO is 100 percent A-1, and I thank the drivers. God bless them all. Thank
you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, questions for the testifier?
AUDIENCE: ... (applause)...
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Seeing none, thank you very much.
. . . Ellen Kamaka. . .followed by Jenny Estrella.
NOTE: Pause while Ms. Kamaka approached the mic.

MS. KAMAKA: . . . Aloha.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aloha.
MS. KAMAKA: My name is Ellen Kamaka, and I am a disabled citizen in the Wailuku
community My disabilities include blindness and renal disease. Last year, my dialysis
buddy, Roy, stood right here before you and spoke up in support of MEO's
Transportation services. My buddy, Roy, is no longer with us. Such is the reality of our
disability. My disabilities create many obstacles, the greatest one being my
independence. My MEO Transportation services allows me to maintain my
independence--from grocery shopping, medical appointments, monthly bill paying,
banking, postal errands, church services, and attending funeral services, and of course,
my three-times-a-week dialysis treatments. The MEO Transportation staff and drivers
have become my extended ohana. It is their willingness to serve us that helps to uplift
and strengthen us. They give us hope when, at a time in our lives, we are just struggling
to stay alive. They work as a team, and everyone is a team player. They have the
experience, the professionalism, the respect, and compassion that is needed to create an
uplifting and life-sustaining environment. Therefore, it is imperative that the MEO
Transportation services continue its most valuable and essential services so that it will
always be a movable force for a higher quality of life in our Maui communities. On
behalf of all of the disabled who are living happy and -MS. HAMMAN: Two minutes.
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MS. KAMAKA: -- productive lives because of MEO Transportation, we sincerely ask for your
continued support. Mahalo.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, questions for the testifier?
AUDIENCE: ... (applause)...
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Baisa? Question.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Ms. Kamaka, thank you very much for being here this evening. I
am...your testimony warms my heart.
MS. KAMAKA: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Do...do you use the ADA Paratransit service?
MS. KAMAKA: Yes, I...I utilize both services.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: So, you use both services?
MS. KAMAKA: Yeah, but the thing with MEO Transportation, it's like I said, they're really
trained to take care of the elderly and the disabled. And we, as the clients, feel their
compassion. And so it's a joy, you know, it's like they're a family for us.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you very much.
MS. KAMAKA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: That's important.
MS. KAMAKA: You're welcome. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
AUDIENCE: ... (applause)...
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Jenny Estrella, followed by Janis Opiana.
MS. ESTRELLA: . . . Hi, hi my name is Jenny Estrella, and I'm here to support MEO Headstart.
I would like to start off by saying thank you for supporting the MEO Headstart programs,
and I really hope you'll continue to support and fund this program. I would also like to
thank the Headstart workers. Thank you for all the help you have provided for my family
and the many others that you have helped and are still helping. My family has been
active participants with Headstart for two years now, and hopefully my other two
children will have the opportunity to get into the program. I've seen my son grow from a
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very shy and timid child, into a smart and confident child. Headstart hasn't only helped
my son. It has also helped me. I now have the support and time to finish my high school
education and strive to reach my goal of becoming a nurse. I am now one course away
from my high school diploma and one step closer to college and pursuing my career goal.
Without Headstart, I wouldn't have the chance to begin the process of getting my
diploma and achieving my goals--and it is this way for many other families in this
program. So I ask that you please continue funding the Headstart program so that they
can continue to help my family and the many other families to achieve their goals and to
better their future. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, questions for the testifier?
AUDIENCE: ...(applause)...
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Seeing none, Janis Opiana?
... Janis Opiana?
. . . Followed by Kyra Frate.
NOTE: Pause while Ms. Opiana approached the ink.

MS. OPIANA: . . . Okay. Aloha, Maui Council Members. My name is Janis Opiana, and I'm
speaking on behalf of my MEO Headstart ohana here. And well, I first wanted to thank
you for funding our programs in the past. I'm a policy council member here on the
Headstart program. I have two sons. My one son here, Jonas, he's five, he's an alumni
of the Preschool Headstart, which made it so much more easier to go to work and school
because I'm...I actually go to school now. Because of the Headstart programs, I was
able to receive two college degrees. I have one in Automotive Technology and one in
Liberal Arts, which is a stepping stone to get my Bachelors in Education so I can come
back and teach in our public schools system. So not only does this...these programs help
parents like myself pursue our goals, pursue our dreams, pursue the things that, you
know, that we want to in life, but it helps our...our kids. It helps my...within the...like
their developmental stages, you know, they're always there...the staff is always there
trying to give us advice, and you know, mothers like me, you know, we get hard time,
struggling for people to watch our kids, you know, just people that we trust. And this
program-MASTER LOGAN: . . .(inaudible). . .
MS. OPIANA: That's my son Logan, he's currently in the program now. And I went through
quite a few babysitters, and it was really hard, but this program I trust.
. . . It's hard. And without these programs, I would not be able to do it. . .without the
staff there. And I just...please, please continue. . .to fund these programs, and I promise
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you I'll come back and be a much productive, better citizen for... (laughter)... for us. So I
think that's all I have to say about that.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, questions for the testifier?
AUDIENCE: ... (applause)...
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Seeing none, thank you again. Kyra Frate, followed by Amanda Barr.
MS. FRATE: I'm Kyra Frate, and I'm also here on behalf of the MEO Headstart program. My
son is in the program, and please continue supporting the MEO Headstart program,
because it allows parents like myself the opportunity to attend college while having
preschool age children cared for in a quality environment at no cost. With the high cost
of preschool and child care, many well-meaning and deserving parents in the community
are unable to. . .put their ambitions to use. Many do not have the money necessary to pay
for preschool or child care. . .so that they can go to college to get a better job, to be able
to pay for preschool and child care in the future. The MEO Headstart program also gives
MCC students in the childhood and early development program hands-on
training...hands-on training that it pertinent to their field.
. . . Please take me at face value when I say that MEO Headstart is a remarkable program,
and. . .if it is to continue changing lives for the better, it really does need your continued
support. When you support college students and their children, you're supporting your
future, because they will be responsible for it. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, questions for the testifier?
AUDIENCE: ... (applause)...
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Seeing none, Amanda Barr, followed by. . .Temoani Keahi.
MS. MARK: Good evening, my name is Anella Mark, and I'm a parent of a child with...who
participates in Best Buddies. My son's, is...his son is Amelio and he has Down
Syndrome. As a parent, when you have a child with a disability, you wonder how his or
her life would be. Would he be having friends? Would he have life-long relationships?
Will he have the experiences that other children do? Will. . .he be accepted, included?
Going through life is a challenge for a parent with a child with a disability. You're
always fighting for them. . .and then just for them to just be accepted and to have a
life-long relationship. Just imagine if you didn't have a friend. What would you have?
You just have a television, a game...a game to play with. You see, Best Buddies, has
been a life-changing experience--never imagined Amelio would be accepted by his peers.
Even in high school, the fears of a parent of a child going into high school and not having
a friend. . .there's a lot of issues that go on in high school. Are they gonna end up with
wrong...the wrong...the wrong group? Are they gonna be bullied? Are they not gonna
be accepted. Best Buddies provides for children, school age and college, with or without
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disabilities to grow personally and envision themselves as productive individuals in
society through leadership and seminars. My son went to a seminar with other children
from Maui High...disabilities, and people with and without disabilities. My son came
home and told me that he needed to have a better attitude so that he could be a leader in
the community So it gives him the ability to have the self-esteem to know that people
love and care for him. But more importantly the children in the schools, okay, they reach
out to these people. There are kids out there that want to reach out to people with
disabilities and be their friend. And their friends become their friends.
MS. HAMMAN: Two minutes.
MS. MARK: And it makes, it makes a big difference because they're in the community So it
provides those life-long relationships, which is what every individual needs in order to
develop healthy and positive self-esteem. It teaches about the diversity of our culture,
greater acceptance from others, and in turn less bullying in the school environment
because it integrates everyone. All everyone wants is to be included. Best Buddies
means hope and vision for...to see goodness and love to individuals who otherwise
would not have achieved or have a chance. So also see the hope and the future that
others benefit far greater than the individual with the disability. The individuals are truly
a blessing and an example from God. I speak on behalf of all the parents that need this
program. We appreciate you and we appreciate the service that you provide to the
community And I know it's going to be very difficult, but if you can just find a little bit
of money just to help promote this program, it would be certainly appreciated...gready,
greatly appreciated, specifically from the parents with the children with disabilities.
MS. HAMMAN: Three minutes.
MS. MARK: And thank you very much for your time and effort this evening.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, questions for the testifier?
AUDIENCE: ...(applause)...
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Amanda. . .Amanda Barr?
NOTE: Pause while Ms. Barr approached the laic.

MISS BARR: . . . Hi. Good evening, Council Members. My name is Amanda Barr, and I'm
representing the Women in Technology. I think you should keep it because it gets people
active, and I had lots of fun competing in Oahu. . . .(end of tape, start 2B). . . and my
group won first place. Being in this club kept me...met a lot of new friends. I was also
in Introduce a Girl to Engineer Day. That was fun to shadow an engineer and learn all
about their job. So keep this program running. Thank you.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, questions for the testifier? Seeing none, thank
you.
AUDIENCE: ... (applause)...
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Temoani Keahi?
NOTE: Pause.

MISS KEAHI: . . . Hi, I'm Temoani Keahi. I'm here to represent the Women in Technology,
same as Amanda Barr. And I would like to say that's a really good group. It's really fun.
It helps us with a lot of future stuff we're gonna be doing, like the Introduce a Girl to
Engineering was fun. We had a competition in Oahu, the High and Dry competition. We
came first place, and it's a really good group that we hope you guys will keep on funding
for. And. . .that's it. Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, questions for the testifier? Seeing none-AUDIENCE: ... (applause)...
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --David...Dave Scott Ramos...
. . . followed by Michelle Puntee.
MASTER RAMOS: Good evening, Council Members. I, I am Dave Ramos from Iao School,
and I am representing Maui Economical [sic] Development Board. When I went to Oahu
to compete with the other schools, it was fun and also educational. When my group won
State champion, I wanted other students to experience what we just did. Keep this
program running. Thank you for your time.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, questions for the testifier?
AUDIENCE: ... (applause)...
CHAIR PONTANILLA:
Jennifer. . . Scharer.

Seeing none, thank you. Michelle Puntee, followed by

MS. PUNTEE: Good evening to you, the Maui County Council Members. My name is
Michelle, and I am a parent of a child with special needs. It is my sincere desire for my
daughter to be integrated, not only with her peers at school, but also within the
community I am looking forward for Best Buddies program to continue to facilitate a
rapport and in helping her to develop life-long friendships. Up to this point, my daughter
has not had any opportunities to have friends to hang out with, until she was paired up
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with her new Best Buddy. I am also a substitute teacher, and as one, I get to see first
hand the division between general peers and special needs children. Please consider to
continue funding for the Best Buddies program so that my child and others can find a
place of acceptance. Thank you very much.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, questions for the testifier?
AUDIENCE: ... (applause)...
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Seeing none, thank you again. Jennifer Scharer?
. . . Jennifer?
NOTE: Pause while Ms. Scharer approached the mic.

MS. SCHARER: . . . Good evening, honorable Council Members. My name is Jennifer Scharer
and I have the pleasure of serving as a board member for Best Buddies. Best Buddies
helps bring students with intellectual disabilities together with general students. They
help create special relationships that are truly life changing. In my humble opinion,
leading a normal life is tough as it is. Added to that, trying to find acceptance. Imagine
these children, trying to find their way through schools. . .trying to find what one would
consider normalcy. But Best Buddies can aid in that through their programs, building
friendships. Simple things that we might take for granted, like. . .going out to the movies,
going on field trips, or visiting special places with your friends, that's what Best Buddies
can do. So I implore you, Council Members, to take Best Buddies into consideration.
Thank you very much.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier?
AUDIENCE: ... (applause)...
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Seeing none, Virginia Barbero, followed by Chassidy Sakamoto.
NOTE: Pause while Ms. Barbero approached the mic.

MS. BARBERO: . . . Good evening.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Good evening.
MS. BARBERO: . . . Hi, my name is Virginia Barbero, and I'm a branch manager for a local
bank. I'm also honored to be one of the board members for Best Buddies. And for those
of you. . .that are not so familiar with this organization, Best Buddies is a non-profit
organization that match general education students with students with intellectual
disabilities.
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. . . The friendship or relationship changes their lives now that they have a regular student
that they can call a friend.
. . . Some of the activities that they have been involved with are going to the mall,
watching a movie, and even going bowling. Yes, bowling. And some of them are such
an excellent bowlers. Even I felt intimidated. . .and I was not even bowling. I was just
there as a spectator.
. . . I am here today. . .to ask you to please continue funding them in 2011. With your
support and funding, they get to be involved more than in society. . in school, where they
can face. . .extra challenges. . .of feeling different. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, questions for the testifier?
AUDIENCE: ... (applause)...
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Seeing none, thank you. Cassidy [sic] Sakamoto, followed by
Charmaine Dela Cruz.
MISS CHASSIDY SAKAMOTO: Hello, I am Chassidy Sakamoto. I'm a student at Baldwin
High School, and I'm in their EAST program there. First of all, I'd like to thank Maui
County Council, Maui Economic Development Board, and the Women in Technology for
your support and funding for our program. In the program, I was able...I am able to
access programs that are out of price for me...my family. Like if, without this program, I
would not be able to have access to them. And it's really wonderful. From this program,
I was able to learn how to do dream reversal. Now I'm able to create basic web pages
and things like that. It also offers a place for me to go to do my homework. Our
computer lab at our school is really out to...out of date, and having the EAST lab gives
me the privilege of getting my homework done more efficiently and better. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, questions for the testifier? Seeing none, thank
you again.
AUDIENCE: ... (applause)...
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Charmaine Dela Cruz, followed by Kaui Mitsuyoshi.
MISS DELA CRUZ: Good evening. My name is Charmaine Dela Cruz, and I'm a senior at
Baldwin High School, and I'm here to testify on behalf of the EAST program. Because
of the EAST program, like Chassidy announced, I am able to access many of the very
expensive programs like the Adobe Master Collection. If you guys don't know, it's
probably like $600 for the master collection. Because of that program, I am able
to. . .gain knowledge about many of the ...
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. . . the . . .(laughter). . . I'm sorry. I'm able to gain knowledge about the technology
because that is such a high growing industry. Not only am I able to gain knowledge for
myself, outside of the class, I'm...I can teach other people. It's a class where I can learn
at my own pace and . . .
. . . grow at my own pace. It's not one where we were pushed to do something.
. . . I'd like to take this time to ask you guys to keep funding for the program for the
future generations. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions from [sic] the testifier?
AUDIENCE: ... (applause)...
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Kaui Mitsuyoshi? Kaui, followed by Leina Fernandez.
NOTE: Pause while Miss Mitsuyoshi approached the uric.

MS. FERNANDEZ: . . .(inaudible). . .
MISS MITSUYOSHI: . . .(inaudible). . .
MS. FERNANDEZ: . . .(inaudible). . .
MISS MITSUYOSHI: . . . My name is Kaui, and I am seven years old. This is my
brother , and we both go to the Paukukalo Boys and Girls Club, and this is my
mom. I love going to the Boys and Girls Club because we do fun activities, and some
days we do activities such as community service. Also we have a snack shop with good
stuff to buy, like ice pops, saimin, and ice cream, and so much more. It's really cheap so
all the kids can buy something good to eat. On days when we don't have money, the staff
even gives us something to eat if we are hungry. Every Monday, Wednesday, and
Friday, we have a Club meeting for everybody to gather in the hall. We start the meeting
with 100 percent...(inaudible)...for each other, for our Club, for our property, and our
equipment. We also share about the day's activity schedule, and talk about being safe at
the Club. The staff...the staff also likes to give out awards and prizes for doing our
homework, or helping other kids, and also just being positive. That is why I love going
to the Boys and Girls Club.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
ALL: . . .(laughter, applause, and cheers).. .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: ...(laughter)... Okay, Leina Fernandez . . . (laughter). . . followed by
Tasia Latu.
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MS. FERNANDEZ: Aloha, my name is Leinaala Fernandez. That was my daughter Kaui, and
I'm here on behalf of the Boys and Girls Club of Maui. I'd just like to share with you a
little bit about why this program is so important to me and my children. Up until a year
and a half ago, my children were attending the A-Plus Program after school. They had
been in A-Plus since kindergarten. Around the third grade, my son started having some
behavior problems, so the staff at A-Plus tried really hard to work with my son, but they
had exhausted their resources. . .in other words, they couldn't handle him anymore. So
they informed me that my son would have three chances to show improvement, or he
would have to leave the A-Plus Program. I remember crying that day, knowing that I
could not afford childcare, I could not take off work three hours early every day, and I
have no family that could help watch the kids till I got off work. I was at a loss. A
girlfriend suggested I try Boys and Girls Club, so I went and signed the children up there.
After signing them up, I explained to the staff of Boys and Girls Club about my son's
behavior problems. They told me not to worry, that they would help. It was like a
burden had been lifted and that I had finally found the support I needed so badly. The
staff at Boys and Girls Club have become like family to my kids. They get so excited
when they see Uncle Kawika at the store, or Aunty Sonya at church, or any of the staff.
A real bond has taken place with my kids and the staff at Boys and Girls Club. My son
now has good male role models in his life, thanks to this program. It is such a safe and
loving environment there, and they learn so much. Besides their homework, the staff
helps the kids do everything, from music, art, sports, games, and so much more. The list
goes on and on. I am so grateful for this program. It's making a difference -MS. HAMMAN: Two minutes.
MS. FERNANDEZ: -- in the lives of my kids, especially my son, who has behavior problems,
yeah, it's really improving a lot. So I would also like to add that funding for the bus fare,
please...please help with that because $40 a month for two kids doesn't sound like much,
but for a single-parent home, $40 is a lot. Please, please, please support the funding for
this much-needed program. It has made a difference in the lives of my children, and I'm
sure many, many more children and families in Maui. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, questions for the testifier? Seeing none, thank
you.
AUDIENCE: ...(applause)...
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Tasia Latu, followed by Dianne "Didi" Hoopii.
NOTE: Pause while Miss Latu approached the mic

MISS LATU: . . . My name is Tasia. I am 15 years old. Nah, I'm just kidding. I am eight years
old -ALL: . . . (laughter)...
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MISS LATU: -- very special. I have two brothers who are also members at Paukukalo Boys and
Girls Club. I love going to the Boys and Girls Club after school, instead of going home
because it is so boring. At the-ALL: . . .(laughter). . .
MISS LATU: ... Boys and Girls Club, we have fun playing sports and learning new games, and
we do our homework so I can be smart. I'm really smart, you know, and beautiful too.
ALL: ... (laughter)...
MISS LATU: I love the Boys and Girls Club, and we have sports that...they care about me,
really loves us. I also like to go there because I make lots of new friends. Every... shows
me respect. The staff always helps me with my homework, and then I can play outside
with my friends. I always clean up the Club every day. I help put things away. I even
learn how to sweep and mop good. Please don't tell my mom, you know, right? Just
kidding. I feel special at the Boys and Girls Club. And thank you for supporting us.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, questions . . .(laughter). . . for Tasia? Thank
you.
AUDIENCE: ... (applause)...
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Dianne Hoopii. . .followed by Kawika Mattos.
MS. HOOPII: Aloha, Maui Council...Council Members. I am Dianne "Didi" Hoopii. I have
three children and. . .attending Waihee School, and they were previously in the A-Plus
Program there. They heard many good things about the Paukukalo Boys and Girls Club,
and they begged me to get, take them there. So now they catch the MEO bus every day,
five days a week. So that's three kids, five days a week, a dollar each way
. . . (laughter). . . you know, that's a lot of money if we're gonna start that dollar a way for
the bus. I mean, I know the economy isn't good, and I'm willing to pay something, but if
we could please help out, you know, just a little bit to cut that cost a little, I would
appreciate it. My kids go to Boys and Girls Club, under the direction of Tanya and
Kawika. And you know I have two other boys that haven't thrown a baseball
ever...haven't ever played catch. We live in Kahakuloa. All we know how to do is farm,
so there they help them play baseball, you know, throw catch, and this one's been
picking up basketball, and you know, it's...it's a good mixture of physical activity. At,
you know, the structure of their daily lives at Waihee School is learn, learn, learn, but you
know at Boys and Girls Club Paukukalo, they help them with their homework, and then
they can play, and they learn all these other good qualities that they normally wouldn't
get, at, like say, you know, another program. So you know, I'm asking if you guys could
please, you know, help fund this program. They're...right now they're just going off of
grants and donations off of people, but if they could have more funding from the County,
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I believe they could take this program and excel even more. So you know, please
consider that and. . .thank you for your time.
AUDIENCE: ...(applause)...
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Excuse me, you have a question from Mr. Victorino.
AUDIENCE: ... (applause)...
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Dianne, would you, because you have your children that
use the MEO bus, if something like a bus pass could be created where, maybe $5 a
month, or something $10 a month, I don't know...you know -MS. HOOPII: Yeah, definitely.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: --maybe something like that you could afford, and you
think that would be feasible for them?
MS. HOOPII: Yes, definitely. I not saying, you know, everybody needs to pay.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Right, you know.
MS. HOOPII: And I'm willing to pay something, but if we can do that, that would be great.
Thanks.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah. Okay, we're gonna look into that also. Just wanted
to know if you could see something like that -MS. HOOPII: Definitely.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: --instead of the dollar every trip.
MS. HOOPII: Yes, that would be definitely . . . (inaudible due to interruption)-COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay, thank you, Dianne.
MS. HOOPII: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
AUDIENCE: ... (applause)...
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Kawika Mattos, followed by Maliza Galarita.
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MR. MATTOS: . . . So because I'm half Portagee, not full like Mike, but I do kind of go off on
tangents . . . (laughter). . . I, I really gotta say, MEO youth transportation, very crucial to
operation. . .to get...the kids there. And I keep hearing from families how worried they
are since the announcement. And then, the other partnership is real crucial for us is Maui
Food Bank, 'cause we feed a lot of kids. . .they come to the Club hungry. So it's been a
year since I moved back from the Big Island, specifically to take over the Paukukalo
Boys and Girls Club. And I know we not asking you guys for funding this year, but I
really wanted to give you some updates since the last time I was here. . .and spoke with
you last year April. Basically, we took the Club from...from like 30 kids...25, 30 kids a
day to now 65. . .75, up to even over 100 on...on...on days throughout the weeks, too.
We implemented some cultural pieces--hula, ukulele. I even brought on a Kumu Hula, I
mean excuse me a. . .Kumu that can olelo, so that the emergent students who come,
which is how that Club specifically started, would also get some support. So that's a big
change there. We implemented a garden so that we would give the kids who not only
like sports, outdoor recs, but they could...they could learn from that process as well.
. . . I don't know if you remember. . .a couple years ago, hearing that the County. . .what
do you call that. . .the equipment, the park equipment right there in Paukukalo got burned
down...
. . . kind of one fear that the community had with some of the kolohes that used to roam,
you know, and... and never, wasn't busy enough. Those three boys are members of our
Club now. And, they come to us, and they're dedicated. . .to what we teaching them as
far as having respect for each other and the community, which I think is really crucial.
Feedback from the community association and the people in charge there in Paukukalo is,
they're very excited that now...if we're welcoming these kids -MS. HAMMAN: Two minutes.
MR. MATTOS: --who are kolohe, but they deserve a place that they can be. . .be positive
and. . .and, you know, feel safe. I think ...I think that's really crucial. . .to say as well.
We're not being funded by you currently, but as the parents said, we could do more with
funding. We're looking at trying to put a permanent site there, which is really crucial,
but it's gotta be done strategically and it's gotta be done correctly so that we can have
operational funds--not to open and then close, but to do something that's important, open
up the Club and have funding that can support and continue that continuity. So thank you
for...I know it's been a long night, thank you for hearing. . .the representatives from our
Club. Thank you for hearing me as well. MEO Transportation. . .very, very crucial for
all of us, as well as you know to all the other activities as well...the youth activities as
well, so thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, questions for the testifier? Seeing none, thank
you for being here.
AUDIENCE: ...(applause)...
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Maliza Galarita, followed by Fabiola Saenz-Lemus.
MS. GALARITA: . . . Aloha everyone, my name is Maliza Galarita. I'm representing MEC,
Headstart program. My daughter goes to Headstart program at Kahului A, and I'm very
grateful of that program out there for our...our keikis. My daughter is also a special
needs child. When she went...entered into the program, she only could speak up to two
words in a sentence. She could hardly say a full sentence. But as now, I can't even get
the child to be quiet.
ALL: . . .(laughter). . .
MS. GALARITA: She's always talking. She stay more worse than one Portagee
. . .(laughter). . .
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Hey.
ALL: ...(laughter)...
MS. GALARITA: How come, what's going on? I mean everything else I mean, she talks a lot,
and I am very, very grateful. I, I tried other programs to help to try and get her in, and
they said they can't take her. So with the MEC out there of helping my daughter and also
my family as well, I am very grateful. As also, as a parent, I also learned from my
daughter. . .different languages that she teaches me--in Spanish and some...and Filipino.
And I say baby, what's these words you telling me? She tell me, Mom, its new words,
you gotta say this. . .she tells me agua for water, and some other words, and I'm like
wow, you learned this all in school? Yeah, Mom. And I'm just very amazed. Other
things that she also teaches me, as a parent, of how to talk in my inner voice. Sometimes-I'll share a little story. Sometimes me and my husband, every family has it. . .they have
their ups and downs and they argue. Sometimes you use your outer voice, and then when
she hears that, she comes up to me, says, Mom, Miss Christina said you gotta use your
inner voice, Mom, inner voice. So I also learned that from my daughter. And also, too,
what I also learned, too, from the MEC staff is that they actually care about their
families. They look forward in calling up the families. How are you doing? Is
everything okay at home? Not only with your child, but also with you as an adult, and as
a family. And I am very grateful. Even though, and I'm sorry to say this will be my last
year, I will very much miss the MEC, -,

,

MS. HAMMAN: Two minutes.
MS. GALARITA: --staff as being a part of my family. And I'm very grateful, so I hope you
guys continue this program. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, questions for the testifier?
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AUDIENCE: ... (applause)...
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Seeing none, Fabiola. . .Saenz-Lemus, followed by David Kingdon.
NOTE: Pause while Ms. Saenz-Lemus approached the mic.

MS. SAENZ-LEMUS: . . . Hi, my name is Fabiola. . . . (sigh). . . Okay, I've been trained with
many tools to save lives, but in some cases our main enemy is time. Even though this
training and tools can't buy time, but the helicopters can. Thank you for your time.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier? Seeing none,
thank you.
AUDIENCE: ... (applause)...
CHAIR PONTANILLA: David Kingdon, followed by Anna Imakila [sic].
NOTE: Pause.

MR. KINGDON: . . . Good evening, my name is David Kingdon. I'm a paramedic with Maui
County EMS, AMR. I'm also the EMS instructor for Maui County. Just wanted to start
by sharing one anecdote of the hundreds of lives in which Maui medevac, the EMS
helicopter, has made a difference. On December 22 nd of 2006, my ambulance was called
to the Piiholo Ranch for a woman who was thrown from a horse. When we arrived, the
only way for us to reach her on the ground was by ATV. It as a pretty bumpy ride for
about 15 minutes, even to reach the patient. When we reached her side, I found that she
had been knocked unconscious after being thrown from the horse. She was now awake,
but had severe back pain and my trauma exam showed that she had some other signs of
very serious injury. So I quickly decided to bring in Maui medevac to take her out.
Discussed that with the emergency physician who agreed that that was not only the best,
but it was truly the only appropriate mode of getting her out of there. Maui medevac was
able to land on a bluff nearby. We were able to walk the patient over to the helicopter,
have her brought down to Maui Memorial where she was diagnosed as having a closed
head injury, a spinal fracture, as well as a potentially lethal injury to her liver. It's worth
noting that, not only was the time saved significant, but in this case, particularly with a
spinal fracture and a liver injury, these injuries could have been made much worse and
more life threatening if she had been taken out by any other means, the motion that would
have been caused, et cetera. That's just, like I say, one of the many, many cases that,
where it's made truly a life difference. In general, I wanted to make a few closing
comments. Maui County EMS is by far, the best EMS system that I've worked for, and
that's why I've chosen to serve the rest of my career serving this community There's a
lot of things that make it the best EMS system of any I've worked for. Maui medevac is
part of that, and it is, in my experience, the safest, the most effective, and the most
efficient EMS helicopter that I've been exposed to. And I've been exposed to several.
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MS. HAMMAN: Two minutes.
MR. KINGDON: There is no price, certainly, that you can place on any human life, and these
are for critical cases. However, since we are here talking about budget, it's worth my
telling you that truly this program is pennies on the dollar compared to most EMS
helicopters across the nation. Just as one comparison, when I worked for Travis County
EMS in Texas, their EMS helicopter, their budget was over $5 million which was entirely
borne by the county. There was no state support at all. So you know, we're able to
provide a similar service and, in some ways, a superior level of service for...you know,
we're, we're looking for the restoration of $670,000, County funds. So I think that is
quite reasonable in spite of these difficult times. And I thank the, the County for... for
your time.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, questions for the testifier? Seeing none, thank
you.
AUDIENCE: ... (applause)...
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Anna?
MISS IMAKITA: . . . Aloha, Council Members. My name is Anna Imakita, and I'm a junior at
Maui High School, representing the MEO Transportation. I am a member of the Key
Club, Travel Club, and actively involved in Halau Hula Malani 0 Kapehe. I entered the
2010 Miss Hawaii Teen America Pageant last year in November on Oahu and placed
third. I also had an opportunity to be on the set of a TV show called Attack of the Shore
as a hula dancer. I am the oldest of six children, and my parents are very traditional. My
goals in life are to graduate high school with a 3.5 GPA or higher and get into a good
college to major in business. I currently attend the Aloha House program at Maui High.
There are many challenges I have been through in my life, and the Aloha House program
has helped me with many of these challenges. The program offers me a lot of support,
encouragement, activities that keep me focused on my goals in life. Some of the things
we focus on are service in the community and educational information. In order for us to
carry out these things, we need transportation, and MEO has always been available for us
to get to these places and back. Even with the budget cuts, MEO has been gracious
enough to provide the transportation services to the Aloha House program free of charge
under the youth trans program. A lot of my peers in the program have talked about not
being able to afford transportation to get to these activities on a timely basis. A
community service activity we do twice a year is helping the old folks at Hale Makua,
doing regular visits and singing Christmas carols to them during the holiday season.
. . . By doing this service, it makes me feel selfless, empathetic, and it opened my eyes to
be grateful for what I have. An educational activity we do every year is the prison visits
and B.E.S.T. program visits. During these visits, we learn about making right choices.
We all know in the community that drugs is one of the major problems. It affects our
community in many ways, but mostly the teens. Drugs get a lot of our teens in trouble in
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school and in our community By having these activities that Aloha House offers, it
keeps a lot of the teens in our program focused. Therefore, MEO Transportation provides
us this opportunity to do these activities and be focused. As a teen, I am requesting for
you to -MS. HAMMAN: Two minutes.
MISS IMAKITA: --continue to provide MEO Transportation the funds for us to do service and
receive education so we can stay focused in our life goals. Thank you for taking this time
to listen to my request.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, questions for the testifier?
AUDIENCE: ... (applause)...
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Seeing none, thank you. Lala Johnson, followed by Chanda Keawe.
NOTE: Pause while Ms. Johnson approached the ink.

MS. JOHNSON: . . . Aloha, Council Members. My name is Miss Lala. I'm here in behalf of
the Maui, MEO Transportation. A counselor...I am a counselor at Aloha House
school-based program at Maui High School. In this program, we try to do our best to
provide the skills and tools that the students may find useful in becoming and remaining
to be decent and respectful citizens in the community The mission of Aloha House is to
provide comprehensive, family-centered behavioral health intervention, for the
prevention and treatment of individual and family dysfunction. The mission of our child
and adolescent mental health programs is to help children with the emotional and
behavioral impairments to achieve optimal functioning in their schools, in their homes,
and in the community The mission of our substance abuse services division is to assist
persons addicted to drugs and/or alcohol to achieve and maintain a healthy and sober
lifestyle. As you have already heard from the testimony of our student at Maui High
School, Aloha House...Aloha-based program, there are many challenges in her life, but
she continues to overcome these obstacles by the support of our services, as well as
the...as well as the services of MEO Transportation. They provide the opportunities for
these students to experience and to be exposed by providing the transportation. They
wouldn't be able to have these experiences if they didn't have the transportation to get
there. A good friend of mine taught me a great value that I teach the students, as well as
my co-workers and friends, so I'm just gonna share this with you. I believe in the value
of collaboration, where we can all collaborate with one another as agencies, departments,
most of all as people to try and make this all work out for the right reasons, and also to
make things right. By me collaborating with MEO Transportation, in providing the
transportation, I am able to fulfill my part in providing opportunities and experiences for
these youths... (end of tape, start 3A)...to maintain a healthy lifestyle for themselves and
our community
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MS. HAMMAN: Two minutes.
MS. JOHNSON: For these...for this reason, I come before you with humility to search in your
hearts with what is right. Collaborate with one another and with MEO Transportation to
make it right by continuing to support them with the necessary funds to continue what
works out for the right reasons. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, questions for the testifier? Thank you.
Chanda-AUDIENCE: ... (applause)...
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --followed by Nathaniel Tomchak.
MS. KEAWE: Good evening, my name is Chanda Keawe, and I am testifying as a foster parent
on behalf of my foster children, and I'm testifying on behalf of the funding for MEO
Headstart. I've been grateful to have the opportunity to work with the high-level quality
of staff at MEO Headstart. I am so grateful for the service that they provide to my child,
and not only that, but I learned that they also provide a social worker, for each location,
that is dedicated to the families. Not just the children because they understand that
without a family that can work with their child, the child will never learn, and they
provide that tremendous service. I'd like to know--if, if I'm not intruding, maybe--if any
of you guys have children. Anybody? Okay, so we are all on the same page as far as
education and what it means to our children. And I ask as you're going through this
budget, it's hard, I know you're gonna have to cut some things, but remember what our
essentials are, remember what our priorities are. Make education a priority. Please
continue the funding for MEO Headstart as you've done in the past. It's a awesome
program, and I ask that you continue supporting our children, and not to fail them--as the
State has failed them--at the County level. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier?
AUDIENCE: ... (applause)...
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Seeing none, Nathaniel Tomchak?
. . . Nathaniel?
. . . Ezra Keawe?
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER, FROM THE AUDIENCE: They went home.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: ... (laughter)...
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER, FROM THE AUDIENCE: School.
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: . . .(laughter). . .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay, Nicole...she's not here.
. . . Sydney Green, not here.
. . . Summer Bradbury?
. . . Summer Bradbury, not here. Bryce Ribucan?
. . . Bryce Ribucan?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Oh, there. Right there.
NOTE: Pause while Master Ribucan approached the mac.

CHAIR PONTANILLA: . . . Followed by Iristine [sic] Omura.
MASTER RIBUCAN: . . . Thank you, Council, for being here. My name is Bryce Ribucan,
and I'm here representing myself, and the Maui High School EAST program. What we
do in the Maui High School EAST program, is we. . .how am I gonna say this? We
integrate community service projects into classroom learning, and through that, we are
able to learn how to use computer technologies such as GPS and GIS, and that gives us
an opportunity to see. . .what kind of careers are out there. It gives us an opportunity to
work with people in the community, and of course without the community, none of this
would be possible. Kind of caught me off guard, 'cause we were working on our project
right there . . . (laughter). . . so kind a jumbled up. But through EAST, I've been able to
understand...get a greater understanding of what I wanted to do after high school. The
main project that I work on is robotics, and. . .again without the help of the community,
the County, and the public, none of that would be possible. This past year, with the help
of the County, we were able to get to Arizona where we competed...we placed about
2461 ...and not ideal, but we were still able to represent Maui and everybody here.
Well...you'll hear more from it...from the other two students, but I just want to take this
moment to say thank you for all you've done to support us, and I hope you continue to
support us in the future. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier? Seeing none,
thank you.
AUDIENCE: ... (applause). . .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Iristine [sic] Omura, followed by . . .
. . . Kurt and [sic] Jay Rasos.
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NOTE: Pause while Ms. Omura approached the mic.

MISS OMURA: . . . Good evening, Council, County Council Members. My name is
Kristine Omura. I am a student at Maui High School, and I'm part of the EAST program.
I'd like to thank you very much for allowing me to be here in front of you today. We rely
on your support for the resources that we use to pursue our interests within the classroom
using technology and media. In EAST, we gain skills in the areas of technology and
media to. . .design, construct, and implement service learning projects into our school and
further into our community
. . . Many of our projects are initiated by the students themselves, and. . .like I said, we
really appreciate you guys funding our .. .(laughter). .. our program. We realize that
during this tough economic time, education and money is not really being supported as
much as we would like to and we hope to, but. . .all the. . .time and effort that you guys
put into our programs, eventually we hope will go back to the community because a lot of
us...we invest a lot of our own time to make these projects that are our interest. And
if...if you guys didn't fund it, we wouldn't be able to pursue them and makes make
differences and make things happen. So...media is our channel to portray our message,
and we try really hard to integrate within into the outer community by making contacts,
and like I said, making things happen. So thank you very much for your time, and we
hope that you continue to support our program. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, questions for the testifier?
AUDIENCE: ... (applause)...
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Seeing none, Kurt Jay. . .Rasos.
MR. RASOS, FROM THE AUDIENCE: Yeah.
NOTE: Pause while Master Rasos approached the mic.

MASTER RASOS: . . . Good evening, Council Members. My name is Kurt Rasos, and I'm
representing the Maui High School EAST program. I would just like to say, first, that
I've been in this program for four years, and I'm very proud to be in this program. And
without your guys funding, I wouldn't have the opportunities to go to the competitions,
enter different...different things I've created in this program. And I would...I
like. _thank. .. I appreciate the...the funding, but there's a lot of talent in...coming up in
our EAST program, and I want them to have the exact same opportunity as I. And when
I went to the competition in Arkansas last year, it was great to see all the different
students, coming together, collaborating, and showing each other how they work in the
community And I would like a lot of our students to show exactly what they do, because
they have so much talent, and I want them to have the same opportunity as I am. The
EAST program is...we work so much with the community. We have so much projects,
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and for that to go...to go to waste is a real shame...shameful thing. So thank you for
funding that, and. . .I would hope you guys keep, would keep funding the EAST program.
Thank you so much.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, questions for the testifier? Seeing none, thank
you very much.
MASTER RASOS: Thank you so much.
AUDIENCE: ...(applause)...
CHAIR PONTANILLA: At this time, the Chair is gonna take a five-minute break, so that we
can stretch our legs, go get coffee, go get juice or water and refresh ourselves. So this
meeting is in recess till...we'll return at 9 o'clock . . . (gavel). .

RECESS:

8:55 p.m.

RECONVENE:

9:02 p.m.

CHAIR PONTANILLA: . . .(gavel). . . The Budget and Finance Committee meeting is now
reconvened. Ladies and gentlemen, I know it's kind of late right now, and we're gonna
try speed it up. You know, if you, if you cannot stay too late, you know, tomorrow
morning we'll be taking public testimony at 9 o'clock at the Council Chambers. Also,
public testimony tomorrow night at. . . 6 o'clock?
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: 6:30.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: At 6:30 at the Council Chambers, so you still have opportunities to
provide public testimony if you cannot stay too long tonight, and then we'll be doing the
same thing on Friday...Friday morning at 9 o'clock. So if you can't stay too late then,
you know, I urge you to come back tomorrow morning, or tomorrow evening at 6:30, or
Friday morning at 9 o'clock . . .(laughter). . . Okay, the next testifier tonight is
Earl Lamadora, followed by Ryan Takushi.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I think Lamadora went home.
COUNCILMEMBER

: No, he's right there.

CHAIR PONTANILLA: There you go. Earl?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: . . . Oh, there Earl. Ah, hi.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: . . . After Ryan Takushi, would be Randal Takushi.
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MR. LAMADORA: . . . Okay. Good evening, Maui County...Maui County Council Members.
I'm here today to ask your support for the Maui Adult Day Care Centers. Two years ago,
my mother decided--my mother has Alzheimer's or dementia, and two years ago she
decided to fly the coop, and she went walking down the road from my house, and lucky a
nurse from Maui Medical Group found her and picked her up.
. . . That was a blessing. And after that, I had to come home early and make sure she was
home safe. That's when Maui Adult Day Care Center came to my rescue. Maui Adult
Day Care Center provides a very safe environment for senior citizens who are not yet
ready to go to Hale Makua. And my mother certainly didn't fit that bill, to go to Hale
Makua yet. She's still able to walk, but at some...at sometimes she doesn't know where
she's at and all that. So I ask your continued support for Maui Adult Day Care Center in
Kahului.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, questions for the testifier? Seeing none, thank
you very much.
MR. LAMADORA: Thank you.
AUDIENCE: ... (applause)...
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Ryan Takushi, followed by Randal Takushi.
NOTE: Pause while Mr. Ryan Takushi approached the ink.

MR. RYAN TAKUSHI: . . . Good evening, County Council Members. My name is
Ryan Takushi. I am disabled, and I also have renal disease. With MEO's help, I've been
able to at least lead a better life. So please do not cut funding for this very vital service.
Can you imagine if I was your brother, your father, or your uncle? You know how...you
know how satisfying it is for me--because, you know, I'm disabled, I cannot walk, I
cannot drive, I need someone to help me. And with MEO's help, I've been able to lead a
better life and have...you know, better quality life. You know, so please, you know, you
know, if it possible do not cut the funding. And if you...if you have to raise rates or
something a little bit, please make it reasonable, you know because a lot of us people live
on a limited income. And you know, this services help me and my family because what
happened to like me is like every time I gotta ask my parents. . .who are retired, I gotta
ask my wife to close her business when there's...there's no bus or nobody to pick me up,
you know, to go doctor or dialysis. These are very vital services to us people who are
disabled. So as I said, think of me as maybe I'm your brother. . .your father, or your
cousin. . .you know, just think of us as you know, if you guys cut the services, boy, we're
gonna be in really deep doo-doos, you know. But I really appreciate you guys funding
MEO all these years, please, please fund MEO, and you know all the services that they
do for the community I really feel that this is very important. . .you know. And I just
want to say thank you very much for your consideration, and mahalo to all you people.
Thank you.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Ryan.
AUDIENCE: ... (applause)...
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Randal?
AUDIENCE: ...(applause)...
MR. RANDAL TAKUSHI: . . . Don't worry, you guys are seeing double.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: ..(laughter)...
ALL: . . .(laughter). . .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Twins.
MR. RANDAL TAKUSHI: Okay, I'm Ryan's twin brother.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Oh . . .
MR. RANDAL TAKUSHI: Okay, I'm almost like in the same predicament as he is. As you can
see from all the people who has testified tonight. . .you know, if you really cut all these
programs, you're hurting, you're not only hurting one person. You're hurting a lot
of...you're hurting a lot of people involved, okay. Take a look in your heart. . .and see
like you see me and my brother. Without the MEO services, I'm telling you it's hard,
very hard, 'cause I can't ask my mom and dad to, you know, lift my wheelchair into the
car, take me to dialysis, or maybe take me to my doctor's appointments. . .as other people
have testified. So keep in mind. . .without these services. . .a lot of people would be hurt,
and not only financially. It will be time consuming, you know, not only on the person,
but always worrying about, do I have a ride to dialysis, or to my doctor's appointments,
to do banking. Like you know, some people, they use it for all their personal needs. We
need these services. So please think about it that, you know, like my brother said, what if
it was your family, somebody in your family who is in that position, who needs the
services. So please do not cut any services. I'm talking about all, not about people with
kidneys problem or dialysis. It's about the whole program, what people had come over
here for. Thank you for your consideration. Thank you for letting me...having time to
speak to you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Randal. Members, questions for the testifier?
AUDIENCE: ... (applause)...
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Seeing none, thank you again. Next testifier is Kathleen
Couch. . .followed by Raenn Canto.
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NOTE: Pause while Ms. Couch approached the mac.

MS. COUCH: . . . Good evening, and thank you for making the time to be here to hear our
needs. I am Kathleen Couch, Caregiver Program Coordinator for Maui Adult Day Care
Centers Like other programs, our caregivers can't be here because they're home caring
for their loved ones, our kupuna. And at the center, we open seven in the morning, we
close at 5:30. We open till...Fridays until 8:30 at night, and Saturdays. And so we have
our kupuna there, we care for them so caregivers can lead a normal life. They can get
respite, they can go to work, they can take a break and do the things they need to do, and
we can care for their...their elderly, our kupuna lovingly, and provide a life for them.
They're so deserving of it, after the life they've led, and that everything they did to bring
us to this point today. So they deserve to be loved and nurtured, and have a program that
meets their needs and gives their caregiver a break. Beyond that, we do a lot to educate
the caregiver. We provide workshops, we facilitate support groups, provide support
counseling, we also train...I go out and train police recruits to know how to work with
someone with dementia behaviors, train Kula Hospital nurses, MCC students--so we
reach far out beyond our Center to help those who need to learn about dementia
behaviors. It's not something we're born with or that comes easy. I want to share one
story because I believe through the stories--we, we have lots of touching stories from the
center. We have the privilege and honor of...of working with our kupuna every day, and
through these stories our caregivers learn. But there was a man who came in one day,
and dad was at the center, and he came in the office. I could tell he was really upset, and
he says Kathy, I want to see you outside now. So I walked out and he says, look at my
dad, sitting there holding a baby, he says, "Holding a doll." He says you can do that with
the women, but not with the men. He says that's insulting. He says if you want to place
a doll in the arms of a woman, do that, but not my dad. As a program coordinator,
somebody who educates caregivers -MS. HAMMAN: Two minutes.
MS. COUCH: --I knew what dad was doing, so I said go ask him what he's doing, and he went
up and he told his dad, why are you holding the doll? And his dad says, oh, this is my
son. He says this is my boy, and he says...he started telling him all the most amazing
stories about him as a baby, didn't recognize this as his son standing there, but this baby
in his arms was now his son. And if you ask your parent to tell you stories about you
when you were a baby, they won't remember those things, but ask someone with
dementia about your baby, place a doll in their arms, and they will tell you the most
amazing things. And a couple months later, he came and says Kathy, what kind of doll
should I buy my dad for Christmas? He says I want to experience more of that, and I
want my family to. This story, amongst so many others, teaches...tells people what we
do for caregivers, what we do for our kupuna. And I want to support MEO
Transportation as well, who takes our -MS. HAMMAN: Three minutes.
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MS. COUCH: --kupuna on excursions, and who brings them to the Center. But please, continue
to support Maui Adult Day Care Centers, MEO Transportation. Thank you very much.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier?
AUDIENCE: ... (applause)...
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Seeing none, thank you. Raenn Canto, followed by Sandy Freeman.
MS. CANTO: Good evening, Council Members. My name is Raenn Canto. I'm here for MEO
Headstart. I have a child who's in public school, second grade, seriously struggling with
the furloughs. She's hardly meeting proficiency...then I have...she's not a Headstart
graduate either. Then I have my Headstart child who's in first grade. He reads at a third
grade level, fluently. He's a star reader. He receives awards all the time at Kahului
School, where he's at, and now I have my youngest who's enrolled in Headstart, and I'm
looking to...I'm looking...I'm expecting the same results from her from the program. So
I just wanted to thank you for your continued support for MEO. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier?
AUDIENCE: ... (applause)...
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Seeing none, thank you. Sandy Freeman, followed by
Vanessa Cannon.
MS. FREEMAN: I'll just take a few minutes. I've talked with many of you before tonight, and
you really know our programs. But first of all, I would like to say thank you to all of
you. And Maui Adult Day Care does service the elder community And we have
different levels and different abilities, and we try and meet all those needs. And we are
the only organization or agency on the island that does provide this service. And I would
just like to share--and I'm not going to read this to you, you have in your possession--I
put together a fact sheet, it's just "did you know". And it's bulleted straight down with
kinds of things--I tried to put myself in your chair as to what kinds of questions you
would...might want to have answered, and I tried to answer it through this fact sheet. So
please take a few minutes and look at it...put you to sleep, but anyway, it might give you
some information. And I just want to say lastly, too, that we have our annual fundraiser,
and our Family Caregiver Walk was February 27 th . And if you think back, that was
tsunami morning, so it had to be cancelled. But we had already collected $43,000 and we
didn't feel that we could just say forget it, you know, we've gone through all of it. So
we're actually...this Saturday, you've probably seen the signs around--a mahalo
celebration thanking the people that have donated--and a tsunami Zumba. So there'll be
Uluwehi and Danny Couch, and good entertainment and food. So if you want to come
out and join us, you're certainly welcome. And again, thank you for the support that you
folks give Maui Adult Day Care. Thank you.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Sandy. Members, questions for the testifier? Seeing none,
thank you.
MS. FREEMAN: Thanks.
AUDIENCE: ... (applause)...
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Vanessa Cannon?
. . . Vanessa Cannon?
. . . Renee Leiter. . .followed by Stephanie Siedman.
NOTE: Pause while Ms. Leiter approached the laic.

MS. LEITER: . . . Ladies and gentlemen, it's a pleasure...it's a pleasure to be here. Perhaps not
for you, it's a long evening to listen to so many things, but I'll make it short and sweet. I
was hoping to end up after you hear our two staff members. I'm here really to thank you
on behalf of all our volunteers--and that's a very large group, thank goodness--and for
our staff which is amazing and manages to work as much as three people could
. . . (laughter). . . in each job position. We're really very grateful and appreciative of your
understanding and your funding for us. 'Cause the Maui...Maui Nui Botanical Garden is
a extraordinary, special place. However, after listening to everything I've heard tonight
and that you've heard tonight, it's very hard to plead for our cause in. . .in terms of
human needs that is so overwhelming in Maui. The money is not what it was. We're
well aware of that, so this is really a big thank you, also for the board. I'm a proud
member of the Weed and Pot Club, and now an even prouder member of the Board of the
Botanical Gardens. We have great plans. We're really moving ahead. We're hoping to
expand all the wonderful things we're doing--mainly in terms of education and
programming to reach even more people than we already do. We really hope to be the
crown jewel of the Parks Department and especially something that you can all be very
proud of. So, I thank you very much for continuing our support and not taking even more
of it away. Thank you, gentlemen.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, questions for the testifier?
AUDIENCE: ... (applause)...
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Seeing none, thank you. Stephanie Siedman?
MS. SIEDMAN: Aloha, my name is Stephanie Siedman, and I'm the Nursery Manager at the
Maui Nui Botanical Gardens. And this is --
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MS. SHERRILL: I'm Tamara Sherrill. I am the Garden Manager at Maui Nui Botanical
Gardens.
MS. SIEDMAN: I first want to thank you for the County's continued support and partnership,
and in the interest of time, I'd like to highlight a few exciting endangered plant
conservation projects we have been working on. First, an Oppenheim-er of the plant
extinction prevention program, reintroduced into the wild over 200-plus native gardenia
that were grown in our nursery to Awalua on Lanai. Secondly, the very rare Kanaloa
Kahoolawe ...(inaudible)... from Kahoolawe, which has five individuals known, one in
the wild and four in cultivation, has flourished and quadrupled in size at Maui Nui
Botanical Gardens. It also flowered this past January. We were able to collect pollen off
the plant for cross-pollinating with other individuals that are located on Kauai at the
National Tropical Botanical Gardens. Thirdly, this past February, Kahoolawe Island
Reserve Commission successfully reintroduced new plant populations of the very rare
grass cenchrus agrimonioides or Kamanomano to Kahoolawe. Kamanomano which is an
endangered grass has only three individuals left in the wild, one on West Maui and two
on East Maui. In addition, Maui Nui Botanical Gardens was also able to share over
70 varieties of taro with various botanical gardens and farmers around the State. We also
documented the entire sweet potato collection with photographs of all parts of the plant to
be used by researchers. Lastly, MNBG gave away over 1,300 native Hawaiian trees to
the public through our Arbor Day event which is held every November. So I would like
to thank you again for your continued support in helping us keep these valuable resources
available. Thank you for your time, and Tamara is going to say something real quick.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
MS. SHERRILL: Thank you...thank you also for the support that you've given to the excellent
programs we've heard from tonight. Maui Nui Botanical Gardens is still open to the
public six days a week. We feature Maui County native plants, as well as a really
extensive and growing collection of really important Hawaiian historic varieties of taro,
sweet potato, sugar cane, and bananas. These collections are becoming even more
important to researchers over time. All our plants are labeled and this year we have a
full-color brochure that is a self-guided tour that describes how Hawaiians used more
than 60 species in our collection. We get visitors every day that use this self-guided tour,
and many of the organizations that you heard from tonight use our... our garden as a
destination for adult day care groups and nursing home groups. We give free advice to
home owners who visit to learn about native plants and water conservation. We hosted
scheduled tours and classes for 17 different schools and community groups this year, and
provided plant materials for more than a dozen hula halau, kapa makers, and other
cultural practitioners. We've provided on-the-job training for 15 Maui Community
College service learning students, 2 Hawaiian Youth Conservation Corps interns, and 1
MCC Hookahua program intern. At least seven community groups regularly volunteer
with us, and the most dedicated being the Weed and Pot Club which comes every week
and meets to help maintain the grounds and nursery, and several thousand people attend
our regular events. So we're...we're a park, we're a water conservation demonstration,
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and a native plant landscape, and I want to invite all of you anytime to come for a private
tour of the nursery, to visit that Kanaloa plant. It's the only chance you could ever see it,
and just see the unique legacy that you've all helped to create for Maui County. Thank
you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, questions for the testifiers?
AUDIENCE: ... (applause)...
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Seeing none, thank you. Jay Hue Sing-Ammasi. . .followed by
Mike McCormick.
NOTE: Pause while Mr. Hue Sing-Ammasi approached the mic.

MR. HUE SING-AMMASI:
Jay Hue Sing-Ammasi.

. . Good evening, Council Members. My name is

COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Lift 'em up.
MR. HUE SING-AMMASI: Sony.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: There you go. Easier for you.
MR. HUE SING-AMMASI: And I'm a father of a son in the MEO Headstart program. I'm a
single father. . .working a fulltime job, and this program has provided so much for
myself, as well as my son. I can't afford a preschool program at $500 a month on my
own, and still be able to work my job, and our, you know, anyway.. .
. . . This program, in the beginning when I first got involved. . .I thought it was a glorified
day care center, really. But the more that I do get involved with it, the more I want to get
involved with it. The more I want, the more I want to see it prosper because every single
member of this MEO Headstart program, from the teachers to the staff. . .bottom to the
top. . .has shown huge compassion, and are very passionate about what they do for my
son, as well as the other children and parents in this program. No matter. . .what happens
here tonight, you guys have a tough decision ahead of you, so thank you for hearing us
and staying here for the night. I appreciate it.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
MR. HUE SING-AMMASI: Aloha.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Members, questions for the testifier? Seeing none, thank you.
AUDIENCE: ... (applause)...
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: While Mike McCormick is coming up, I just to want announce that the
beverage station in the back...we're gonna stop serving coffee and juice and cookies at
9:45 so that the staff can clean up that area. So if you need refreshments, go now. Thank
you. Mike?
MR. McCORMICK: . . . Aloha, Council Members and Budget Chair Pontanilla. My name is
Mike McCormick. I'm the State Director and the Program Manager for Best Buddies
here on Maui, and on behalf of our many hundreds and hundreds of student and faculty
volunteers with Best Buddies, I'm here tonight to ask you to please continue to support
this important program. We're down to bare bones in our program. And I mean over the
last two years, we've taken about 22 percent cut in our budget.
. . . If we can continue to keep support at the level that Mayor Tavares has proposed,
we'll be able to continue the program here on Maui. This program is really needed.
It's...it's a program that's making a tremendous difference, not only with the special
needs students, but the other students at the schools that are impacted by their peer
buddies that are learning what special needs students really need at their schools--not to
be bullied and to be really brought more into the mainstream. Our first group of students
in the program now are just getting ready to go out, graduating high school. Some of
them--because of Best Buddies and, I think, the socialization that we've been able to
provide for them--are gonna be able to go out and get some jobs. So once again it's a
busy night, please continue funding for Best Buddies, and thank you for your support.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier? Seeing none,
thanks again, Mike.
AUDIENCE: ... (applause)...
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Eddie Rubun, followed by Holly Stockwell Lee.
NOTE: Pause while Mr. Rubun approached the ink.

MR. RUBUN: . . .(cleared throat). .. Sorry. Good evening, Council Members. Sorry about
that, I've been sitting long . ..(inaudible) (laughter). . . and it's getting late. I'm
one of the parents who, my son is attending MEO Headstart program. This program give
my child a chance to explore himself, get along with other kids, and learn things that he
never learn at home. So we ask you to please continue your support of our program.
Thank you very much.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, questions for the testifier? Seeing none, thank
you.
AUDIENCE: ... (applause)...
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Holly Stockwell Lee? Holly? .. (end of tape, start 3B). . . Anne Leete?
Anne Leete?
. . . Paul Luuwai...
NOTE: Pause.

CHAIR PONTANILLA: . . . Followed by Jon Sato.
MR. LUUWAI: . . . Good evening, Council Members. Aloha.
. . . I'm Paul Luuwai. I represent Hawaiian Canoe Club and Hawaiian Kamalii program.
I'd like to start off by saying mahalo for your past support. Mahalo for your continued
support. And on behalf of Hawaiian Canoe Club and the Hawaiian Kamalii program, I
want to thank you for helping us serve Maui's keiki and Maui's youth. We all know
times are hard, and tough decisions have to be made. I applaud the County of Maui for
its efforts to kokua Maui's non-profits groups and keikis. I'd also, also say thank you for
helping the MEO bus company. They are...our Canoe Club, like other canoe clubs are
totally dependent on their bus services. . .along with other high schools, they also use the
services. I teach at Kekaulike High School, and I know our team is totally dependent on
the MEO bus service. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, questions for the testifier? Thanks again, Paul.
AUDIENCE: ... (applause)...
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Jon Sato. . .followed by Deanna Garcia.
MR. SATO: Hi, my name is Jon Sato. I'm speaking on behalf of Maui Economic Development
Board.
. . . Born and raised on Maui, went to Baldwin High School, got my Bachelors from
Portland State University. Decided I wanted to move back home to be with my family.
When I came back here. . .I realized how challenging it was to find a job, so it forced me
to explore different fields. So I became interested in GIS, or Geographic Information
Systems.
. . . My sister told me about MEDB. She was a mentor for their. . .Women in Technology
program...
. . . So I contacted MEDB and I learned about their other programs--the Kamaaina Come
Home, and tech careers. I took part as a chaperone on one of their tech careers day.
. . . That day they set aside for high school students, and educate them about various
careers on Maui.
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. . . Various companies in the Maui Research and Technology Park opened their doors on
this day, and I was also available to see what types of jobs are here.
. . . MEDB encouraged me to job shadow with a company called Akimeka.
. . . Through this, I learned more about the GIS field. By doing this job shadow, I was
able to obtain an internship with them, and my current position. . .with their E911
team. . .we help provide services for the County's public safety.
. . . With all these programs MEDB has to offer -MS. HAMMAN: Two minutes.
MR. SATO: --I wouldn't be able to pursue my interest in GIS and remain here on Maui with my
family. Many students would also lose out on these opportunities if these programs were
taken away. Please support the Maui Economic Development Board. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any question for the testifier?
AUDIENCE: ...(applause)...
CHAIR PONTANILLA: So you do work...you do some work for the County of Maui. . .you
say?
MR. SATO: Um. . .we...yeah, we contract with. . .County of Maui.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mr. Chairman?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Medeiros?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Yeah, I just wanted to find out what your degree, in what
discipline is it?
MR. SATO: I was in Exercise Science.
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: . . .(laughter). . .
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay.
MR. SATO: So, yeah, totally different.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Well, it's good that you found something you can--
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UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: --do here on Maui. Thank you for coming back home to
work.
MR. SATO: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mahalo.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Deanna Garcia, followed by Sheri Cohen.
MS. GARCIA: Good evening, Council Members. My name is Deanna Garcia, and I'm here
speaking on behalf of the Maui Economic Development Board. I am the Corporate
Operations Manager for Akimeka, the same company that Jon is interning at. Akimeka is
an information technology company at the tech park in Kihei, and I started my career at
Akimeka while I was attending MCC through Maui Economic Development Board's
Women in Technology Program. So I have experienced firsthand, you know, the. . .the
impact that MEDB has for me personally and within our community MEDB has also
partnered with Akimeka in many ways, one of them being internships. Myself
personally, we have a gal, Alisa Manangan who started at MCC as an intern. She is
today a systems engineer. Danny Prince and Leslie Mahoney interned as high school
students. We then brought them back on...as college interns, and then from there, they
worked on web development and design projects for...and websites for projects that we
have--and we hope to bring them back home too, also through MEDB's other programs,
like Kamaaina Come Home. And so Akimeka understands firsthand the importance and
the value of hiring people with local ties, because we personally experienced a high
turnover rate with folks that we hire from...from the mainland. And so because of this,
you know, they stay here, they work for maybe two or three years and then they leave, so
our return on investment for our company we don't realize those costs...the return on
investments for relocation and for training costs. And also. . .the advantage of hiring
folks like Jon, and bringing, you know, our kamaaina, our educated and experienced kids
back home to Hawaii will only strengthen, you know, our economy. The Kamaaina
Come Home program has also highlighted Akimeka and our company, so we've seen -MS. HAMMAN: Two minutes.
MS. GARCIA: --our Akimeka name has been spread through the form of outreach at the various
job fairs and programs and career fairs and festivals that...that MEDB and their staff
have participated in. And Akimeka also partners and supports MEDB's educational
outreach by opening our doors to students to expose them to careers in high technology
by...through their tech careers program for middle and high school students. So again,
thank you so much for your support and for your time.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, questions for the testifier? Thank you.
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AUDIENCE: ... (applause)...
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Sheri Cohen, followed by Alison Cohan.
MS. COHEN: Thank you, Chairman Pontanilla and other Committee Members for your support
thus far. I am Sheri Cohen, and I. . .I'm here to support Best Buddies.
. . . Can you hear me okay?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah . . .(inaudible)... Pull it.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Pull it out.
MS. COHEN: Sorry.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Pull it out.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: There we go.
MS. COHEN: . . . I wasn't nervous all night until just this moment ...(laughter)... so
...(laughter)...
.. . Imagine your lives without a friend. Imagine being alone, feeling invisible, or
possibly worse, stared at, teased, unaccepted, never being invited to a social event, a
dance, a pizza party. Before the Best Buddies program started here on Maui, well, that's
how many of our special needs kids lives were like in school. Kids who were too shy to
speak, are now speaking, smiling, feeling more confident and better about themselves
because they are now feeling loved and accepted for who they are. . .not only by their
peer buddy, but among a whole group of caring and compassionate new friends.
However, this program does not only benefit our kids with intellectual and developmental
disabilities. I hear firsthand from our general ed students how having a buddy has
changed and improved their lives as well. Please continue funding Best Buddies. We
need this program because far too long our special needs students have been ignored.
Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, questions for the testifier?
AUDIENCE: ... (applause)...
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Seeing none, thank you again.
MS. COHEN: Thank you.
AUDIENCE: ...(applause)...
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Alison Cohan, followed by Mark, oh, Mack Dole.
MS. COHAN: Aloha, thank you once again for holding this meeting, for staying so late, and
being attentive to us all. My name is Alison Cohan. I work for the Nature Conservancy
of Maui. I'd first like to acknowledge all the difficult decisions you all have tonight in
this economic climate. Clearly, times are tough and we are all feeling it. I'd first like to
extend my most heartfelt thanks to each and every one of you for your generous support
for watershed protection. Maui County and the Mayor's Office, and in particular, the
Maui County Council has been and continues to be a leader throughout the State for
environmental and watershed protection. Since the start of the East Maui Watershed
partnership in 1991, Maui County has played a leading role in supporting these
partnerships in our island Invasive Species Committee. In 2008, the Council passed a
resolution on the importance of biological control of our most invasive weeds that
threaten our forest. Last year, you passed a resolution on the importance of our native
watersheds to...that supply our water and support our livelihood. All of us in the
environmental sector appreciate your efforts and your accomplishments, and we really
applaud you. The work that the watershed partnerships and Invasive Species Committees
do, and their field crews do, day in and day out, in harsh, cold, rainy weather and remote
and rugged terrain protect our native forests and give us our water. The East Maui
Watershed Partnership provides 60 billion gallons of fresh surface water to Maui's
businesses and residents every year. This water is the life blood of our economy. Water
is essential to every single aspect of our life...of our Maui community--from local
agriculture to our struggling real estate market to the water our children use to brush their
teeth every night. We've made a lot of progress over the years in reducing the impacts of
feral animals and invasive weeds to our native forests. County funding has allowed us to
leverage millions of dollars in funding from other sources just for the watershed
partnerships here on Maui. However, recent dramatic cutbacks from the State and a
dwindling pool of -MS. HAMMAN: Two minutes.
MS. COHAN: --money to tap have left us struggling. Preventing any further loss of momentum
is critical in avoiding dramatic setbacks with our basic watershed protection. Maui
County government stands out among Hawaii's other counties in their commitment to
conserve natural resources through funding of active protection and management. All
conservation agencies are greatly indebted to the Council and Administration for your
unwavering support over the years. We know difficult decisions have to be made to
allow Maui County to keep functioning during these hard times, but we ask for your
consideration in placing watershed and invasive species management as a top priority in
the coming year. Thank you so much.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, questions for the testifier? Seeing none, thanks.
AUDIENCE: ... (applause)...
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mack Dole? Mack Dole?
. . . Anmond [sic] Cassil? Anmond Cassil?
NOTE: Pause.

CHAIR PONTANILLA: . . . Lihau Caires?
. . . Followed by Gerald Jones.
NOTE: Pause while Ms. Caires approached the laic.

MS. CAIRES: . . . Aloha, Council. My name is Lihau Caires, mother of Headstart preschooler,
Faith Caires. I'm here to speak on behalf of keeping the Headstart programs open on a
full day basis, and also keeping the summer programs going. I'm a single parent of three
children, going to full-time school, and working part-time. And this program has helped
me personally because it gave me the opportunity to better myself for the future of my
children, and has also given my daughter the opportunity to be in a good educational
environment. Everyone is feeling the budget crunch, but families and single persons and
parents like me is feeling it even more. So again, my plea is to keep the MEO Headstart
open full-day basis and also the programs running. Thank you for your time. Aloha.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, questions for the testifier? Seeing none, thank
you.
AUDIENCE: ... (applause). . .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Gerald Jones?
. . . Gerald Jones? Scohi Schaefer, oh, Scotty Schaefer. "Scohi" . . . (laughter). .
ALL: . . . (laughter).. .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: 'Eh, you gotta get better writing than this.
ALL: ... (laughter).. .
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: . . . (inaudible).. .
ALL: . . . (laughter).. .
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: You write bad, that's why.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Ho, yeah, you gotta go school.
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MR. SCHAEFER: They told me based on my penmanship, I should have been a doctor.
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: . . .(inaudible). . .
MR. SCHAEFER: I want to read a letter from Reverend Paul Kaneshiro, who is a police
chaplain, and he runs the VOAD, which is Voluntary Organizations Active in Disasters.
And Reverend Kaneshiro is sick and can't make it. But you guys remember on Molokai,
I read a letter from my wife who's also a pastor, and I'm reading from a pastor tonight, so
if you want to take this as a message from God -ALL: (laughter)...
MR. SCHAEFER: --you didn't hear it from me. Reverend Kaneshiro (laughter). . . says this:
I'm writing to ask you to consider restoring the medevac helicopter to the budget. As a
Police Chaplain, I see situations where minutes can make a difference in saving a life.
This helicopter makes a difference in saving lives because of the time it saves in getting
trauma patients to the emergency room or in getting them to the Trauma Center on Oahu
for higher levels of care. Then in the work that I do with the VOAD, the Volunteer
Organizations Active in Disasters, we all know that there are different parts of our
County that would be isolated during a disaster. When road access is cut off, the
medevac helicopter would still be able to operate and get trauma patients, and evacuate
them to the hospital. Who can place a value on a single life? Please keep this vital tool
available here in our County. Thank you for your time and consideration,
Paul Kaneshiro. And I gave a copy of the letter to the clerk. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Scotty.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: . . .(inaudible). . .
AUDIENCE: ...(applause)
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Adam Radford? Adam Radford, followed by George Rixey.
NOTE: Pause while Mr. Radford approached the mac.

MR. RADFORD: . . . Good evening, Council Members. As Alison, who just spoke previously,
did a great job outlining all you've done for the conversation community on Maui. . .and
we truly appreciate it, and I am here as well from that community I represent the Maui
Invasive Species Committee.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: . . .(inaudible). . .
MR. RADFORD: Sure. Can you here me okay? So I represent the Maui Invasive Species
Committee, and I'm here to thank you tonight for all you've done to support our efforts
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to minimize the impacts of invasive species on our native forests, our economy, and our
quality of life. Without your support, I'm certain that many of the successes we've had
would never have been realized. I fear though that if the proposed budget cuts are more
than we're expecting, that many of the species we've worked so hard to control. . .will
not only become reestablished, but quite possibly negatively impact the quality of life on
Maui, which is really our greatest concern as well as the environment. An example of the
effectiveness of our programs, I think, is our efforts to control Coqui frogs on Maui. Not
only have we removed 11 large populations from the island, but also prevented many
individual frogs from becoming permanent residents of area neighborhoods. As a matter
of fact, actually this just happened last week. During routine surveys of over 30 Maui
nurseries, as part of our Coqui free nursery certification program, which is a program that
encourages...plant industry participants to prevent the spread of Coqui frogs. We heard
two Coqui, quickly captured them, and thus prevented them from probably showing up in
a Maui community, or even worse, becoming part of a larger population and thus
impacting many Maui residents or possibly many visitors as well. So I believe these
successes speak to the benefit of having trained staff out looking for these threats to our
environment, quality of life, and economy. Um .. .
NOTE: Silence.

MR. RADFORD: . . . I think often Maui residents, you know, they don't...they're not capable
of going out and looking in all the places we look. They may not know-MS. HAMMAN: Two minutes.
MR. RADFORD: --what we're looking for, and they're certainly often not capable of taking on
these controlled battles themselves. So your...I believe that we provide critical service to
the County of Maui, and your funding support is essential to seeing that...that mission
realized. It not only allows us to get out the door, but it's also used to attract additional
funds which if brought in magnify the impact of our programs. So, essentially, we look
forward to a long and mutually beneficial relationship. . .and truly appreciate your
support today and hope to see that support continue. Thank you for your time.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. I got a question. Every time we hear about invasive
species entering this island, in most cases it comes from the Big Island. What are you
doing as an organization to...to curb invasive species coming to Maui from the Big
Island?
MR. RADFORD: Well, as I mentioned specifically in terms of Coqui frogs, we've started this
Coqui-free nursery certification program to try to address that so we've proactive in
trying to intercept introductions.
. . . As an organization, I think that Teya Penniman, our Program Manager might be able
to speak better to the legislative process or things we're pursuing on that front to try to
change the situation. But right now it's really hard, especially with the Department of
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Agriculture cutbacks. Like MISC itself does not really operate in the realm of
interception at the port or something, so that's a really difficult scenario that we're
working to address. But I think from the way we operate, which is a cooperative
relationship with the community, developing things like recognition for being proactive
or community-watch members, or things like that are avenues we're pursuing.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay, thank you.
MR. RADFORD: Thanks.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: George Rixey?
AUDIENCE: ... (applause)...
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Nani Watanabe? . . . Followed by Elise [sic] Santos.
NOTE: Pause.

CHAIR PONTANILLA: . . . Oh, no, she already...
MS. WATANABE: . . . Good evening, Council Members. Mahalo. I'm here first for Festivals
of Aloha. We'd like to say thank you so much for supporting Maui County and
continuing our festivals throughout...for Lanai, Maui, and Molokai, and Hana. And I
will continue to support Lanai, with its activities there, and be working with the island
manager there ...(inaudible)... mahalo. Tonight, I'm here as Hawaii Centers for
Independent Living, and I am the outreach independent live-in specialist. And also
the...two of my clients was here earlier today, and they are known as the Maui Wheelers.
Hawaii Centers for Independent Living help persons with disabilities to live
independently in our communities, versus institutions. Right now, I have about 20 active
members, and 13 of 'em is about...is pretty active. Since I came back and joined HCIL,
no, we didn't get any funding from County, and we're reorganizing. Today, I have very
much been involved with the Wheelers, and they're actually my support system. So we
go out into the community, and we educate the community about disabilities.
. . . Kihei Canoe Club has actually supported the Wheelers with, actually, an activity. So
every month, once a month they go out and go canoeing down at Kihei. So do you know
where Suda still is? And they, they actually go there. It's really wonderful to see these
consumers be able to get into the canoe and the Canoe Club take them out for a ride.
Many of 'em that have been with their disability for about five years have never gone in
the water, so this has opened up another opportunity for them. And we also have...the
same group is also part of Maui Economic Opportunity. . .senior program. So you do
understand that -MS. HAMMAN: Two minutes.
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MS. WATANABE: --persons with disabilities also become seniors, and so we're trying to break
that barrier of being known as persons with disabilities. So we're trying to merge the two
groups together because what is good for the disabled is also good for the seniors. And
Maui Economic Opportunity have given them the. . .chance to utilize Maui...MEO
Transportation, and they do actually use the other public transportation. They meet at our
office twice a month, and we discussed about doing advocacy in the community. A lot of
our people feel that they should be in the community, and we'd like for you to take a look
at possibly using some of them to actually be on committees because these people with
disabilities--and we're talking about the blind, the deaf, and spinal cord injury--could
actually be an asset to Maui County, planning for the future. They are an awesome
group. Hawaii Centers for Independent Living in looking in-MS. HAMMAN: Three minutes.
MS. WATANABE: --in looking into doing a Ticket to Work Program, training people with
disabilities at our office to go out in the community and work. So thank you for
supporting MEO, and. . .we hope we can get funding next year. Aloha.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, questions for the testifier?
AUDIENCE: ... (applause)...
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Seeing none, thank you, Nani. Marilyn Vierra, followed by Ted Lusk.
Marilyn Vierra? Ted Lusk. . .followed by Titus Borja.
NOTE: Pause while Mr. Lusk approached the mac.

MR. LUSK: . . . How do you do, Council, and those of us still present. I'm Ted Lusk, and I'm a
teacher at Baldwin High School, and I'm here on behalf of the Best Buddies.
Mike McCormick asked me to come talk. . .in regards to that. Since I am a teacher, I'm
more or less with the grassroots. . .in the trenches with the kids. And the program is great
for the kids. We talk about kids first today, and a lot of times we don't always practice it.
We can do better. And Best Buddies, I humbly ask for your support because there are a
lot of worthy organizations that presented, I've heard tonight, as you've heard. I just
hope that we can continue support, also, for the Best Buddies. A quick story or two. We
recently had a dance in Best Buddies, and the kids, both regular ed, as you've heard, and
special ed benefit. But it's not just the disabled, but--for an example, a girl at the dance,
very first time she ever in her whole high school, she's almost 20 cause some students
can stay till 20, that she ever got to go to a dance. Her mother . . . (laughter). . . got her a
dress. First time she'd ever worn a dress. I mean little miracles like that, oh, you should
have seen the smile . . .(laughter). . . on her face . . .(laughter). . . you couldn't get it off
. . .(laughter). . .. Another boy, an autistic boy, he got his picture with a girl, and he
showed it to me on his cell phone, put it up as wallpaper on his cell phone. So proud of
it--and here's my...my buddy's...my peer buddy's phone number. He had it highlighted.
Little things like that, miracles, it just continually through the program--both for, as I
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mentioned, the disabled and the regular ed. We go to a football game . . .(laughter). . .
another example. Most of us can go to a football game, but you little...little do you
realize that some of these disabled students never get invited or have a chance to go.
They have to go, maybe they go with their parents. . .and as a high schooler, they even
know that that's not really cool. But yet they got to go with a peer buddy, a regular ed
student. . .and that just made, I mean just, that's another miracle. It's a small miracle, but
that's what the program's all about. And so we'd like to continue to support the kids -MS. HAMMAN: Two minutes.
MR. LUSK: Okay. Well. . .and your aloha for your support, and thank you for your kind time.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, questions for the testifier?
AUDIENCE: ... (applause)...
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Seeing none, thank you again. Titus Borja, followed by Doug Karatsu.
MR. BORJA: Howzit, County Council Members. First of all, I'd like to thank Jesus and give all
the praise, honor, and glory for him for this opportunity. I'm very humbled and
privileged to have this opportunity. And I'm speaking on behalf of MEO, and I want to
thank you folks for you guys support. This is a great program. I highly recommend it. It
not only does...it help with rental assistance. They teach people how to apply for jobs,
the dos and don'ts from appearance to questions asked. What really impressed me, above
all, was their teaching on budgeting, finance...finances and how the credit system
works...operates. And as you know, most construction union members are without work.
And this is the most needed help at this time--not only for us in the union, but for a lot of
people at this time. And I am a firm believer in Jesus, and I believe in the Bible, and it
says in Ephesians 6:8--I mean I'm just paraphrasing--whatever you do, whatsoever you
make happen for others, God will make happen for you. So whatever you make happen
for your Mom, somebody's Mom, your Dad, your... somebody's son or daughter, God
will make happen for you folks. And so, and in closing, you know, I'd just like to tell
everybody that Jesus loves you guys. And I know, and if you guys can't answer this
question, I got one, one more question here--if you guys were to die this second, do you
guys know for sure that you guys would go to heaven? And if you guys can't answer that
question, please see me, you know, I'll be more than happy to help you guys. God bless
you folks. Aloha.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you . . . (laughter). . . Members, questions for the testifier?
AUDIENCE: ... (applause)...
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Seeing none, thank you again. Doug Karatsu, followed by
Rebecca Woods.
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MR. KARATSU: Hi, good evening, Council Members, and thank you for your time tonight.
My name is Doug Karatsu, I am Board Member and Fund Development Committee
member for Hui Malama Learning Center. The last time we met was at the Wailuku
Community Center, and at that time, I had. . .spoke about Hui Malama's new vision. So
in addition to our academic services. . .focusing on workforce development, furthering
education beyond what we currently offer, and developing the whole person. I think
from the past few weeks you've had a chance to listen to our students, staff, and fellow
board members, and I think you see the relevance and effectiveness of our programs and
our vision. On the fund development side, which I'm directly involved with, we've been
including our students at every step of the way, teaching them work ethic, and
professional protocol and etiquette. Now the funding that we receive from the County
goes directly to our academic services, but it's also enabling us to partner with other
agencies and really focus on our vision of . .workforce. . .development and developing
the student as a whole person. You know, Hui Malama Learning Center, you think of
GED scores, maybe. . .a percentage rate of how many have passed and what they're
doing, but what I see. . .is. . .improvement in self-esteem, pride of belonging to Hui
Malama, and character building that our talented staff cultivates on a daily basis. We
thank you for your continued support.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, questions for the testifier?
AUDIENCE: ... (applause)...
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you again. Rebecca Woods. . .followed by Scott Hopkins.
MS. WOODS: If I could, I would like to give my time--and I'll come up later--to one of my
parents here.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Sure.
MS. WOODS: Would that be okay?
NOTE: Pause while Ms. Kaeo approached the mac..

MS. KAEO: . . . Aloha, my name is Kalae Kaeo, and I currently live at Ka Hale Ake Ola
Resource Center. During the last two years that I've been there, I have accomplished
more than I have in my whole life. I dropped out of school when I was 15 years old, and
through their computer classes there, I was able to obtain my GED, walk the line with the
rest of the Maui graduates. I graduated from the Chemical Dependency Class, the
Malama Class, which is for women in recovery, and I now attend MCC. . .going for my
nursing degree. And my kids also take classes there, which is very helpful to them. But I
believe that this is a very important and crucial program to have in the community for
people like me. . .who have been through a lot and come a long way. And as of next
month, I'm going to be moving into my own place for the very first time in my whole
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life. . .and I'm 28 years old. So it's really brought me a long way and gave me a chance
to get my life together. So, thank you . . . (laughter).. .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier?
AUDIENCE: ... (applause)...
CHAIR PONTANILLA: . . . Oh, she going testify?
MS. KAEO: Yes.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Name?
MISS LACIO-VASCONCELLOS: Hi, my name is Tsayasha, and I'm only seven. I live with
my Mom. And at...at our place I have fun with...with my friends, and we have fun, and
I have...and I have classes, too, and we have kids groups, and art class.
MS. KAEO: . . .(laughter). . . Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, questions? No?
AUDIENCE: ... (applause)...
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Scott?
MR. HOPKINS: . . . Good evening, Council Members. My name is Scott Hopkins, and I'm a
staff member at Feed My Sheep, which is one of the member agencies of the Maui Food
Bank. Feed My Sheep is a non-profit food service organization which provides groceries
for people in need. We hold mobile distributions in six locations across the island.
People from Hana to Lahaina are able to get food because of our work with the Maui
Food Bank.
. . . We witness a great deal of the needs that are taking place right now on the island.
We're familiar with people who are losing their jobs, and they're losing their
homes. . . (change tape, start 4A). . . moving away because times are so tough. And we're
seeing how important food security is to so many of them. We'd like to say that we don't
have "clients", we have "friends", because that's who they are to us--friends, neighbors,
family. We remind them that everyone needs help sometime, this just happens to be their
time. But the thing is this has become "their time" to astounding number of people. In
the last year, we have served over 8,500 unduplicated individual people. During this
time, it has been common for 50 people to sign up in a single week. In March alone, over
180 people came to receive food for the very first time. What we realized is that many of
our friends would not be in need if someone hadn't already cut back--cuts in budgets,
cuts in income, cuts in sales, cuts in travel. These are the people who have already lost so
much because someone else cut back. They don't know much about their future. They
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only know that if they need food, there's a place they can go. While they look for the
next job or the long-awaited improvement in the economy, food security is one of the
most important things that we can offer to them. We understand that our supporters-including the Maui Food Bank, the County--have less money to work with. We're very
thankful for the support of our organization, people from the community, business
owners, churches, clubs, individuals, and other non-profit organizations work with us to
feed the hungry. When times suggest that they cut back, they bravely continue to give
and do as much as they can. And we see how everyone is doing their part.
. . . We thank you for supporting and funding the Maui Food Bank currently, and we ask
you to courageously consider how you might continue to support them.
MS. HAMMAN: Two minutes.
MR. HOPKINS: They've been a partner with us in providing food to people since we became a
non-profit in 2002. And a large amount of the food that we give, we have because the
diligent work of the Maui Food Bank. It's safe to say that without the Food Bank we
would have far less food to offer and far more work to do. We've asked our community
of supporters to continue giving. We seek to support the Food Bank with encouragement
and with directing help their way as well. And we ask you for your continued and
courageous support.
. . . We know that this is a difficult decision for you, with all of your considerations as far
as the County goes.
MS. HAMMAN: Three minutes.
MR. HOPKINS: But we thank you for considering the Maui Food Bank. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, questions for the testifier? Seeing none, thanks
again.
AUDIENCE: . . .(applause). . .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Brian Sarasin?
. . . Brian Sarasin?
NOTE: Pause while Mr. Sarasin approached the mic.

MR. SARASIN: . . . Good evening, Council. I just want to make a comment. George Rixey
was here, but he left for an emergency. He was going to try to come back, but he was
going to testify in support of Tri-Isle Main Street.
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. . . My name is Brian Sarasin, Sr. I am here this evening as a resident of Waihee for over
30 years and speaking as an individual to address to my concern that you be aware of
how critical continued funding for the Tri-Isle Main Street Resource is as a credible voice
for the little guy. The Main Street organization needs your continued support now. We
need a strong voice for our small town communities, and I'm not happy that voice is
being threatened. It appears rules are being changed in midstream so that the
administrating department can silence a voice at a very critical time. Cutting Tri-Isle
Main Street's budget is a sure way to shut up the voice of an organization recognized
as. . .championing the issues and improvements for small town communities for over 25
years. We need Main Street now more than ever to help us finalize a good General Plan
and help us implement our community plans. We need to keep the vision of the
grassroots. And Main Street understands who we are, what we need, and helps to get us
where we want to go. Main Street and its team of professionals are working pro bono.
That saves this County a tremendous amount of money. You need to tell Mr. Hunt and
his cronies how he would like to operate on 75 percent of his budget. . .75 percent of his
budget. His budget doesn't seem to be cut. Someone should check their performance
and listen in on their conversations. To step on Main Street is, is to step on me and all the
little guys who trust Main Street for information and a balanced viewpoint. We pay the
taxes, which in turns pays the department's salaries--which, by the way, has grown from
a staff of under 30 from. . .under Planning Director Min, to 65-plus today.
MS. HAMMAN: Two minutes.
MR. SARASIN: Why do we need so many planners when so many projects are stuck in gear? It
disgusts me to no end how the Planning Department plays lip service to true community
input. This type of control must stop. I humbly ask this Council to provide a sufficient
appropriation for the Main Street for Fiscal Year 2011. We need Main Street to help us
to get to finalizing a good people's plan. This plan will affect our small towns for the
next 20 to 30 years. Our small town advocate should be acknowledged and respected.
Thank you very much.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, questions for the testifier? Seeing none, thank
you again.
MR. SARASIN: Thank you.
AUDIENCE: . . . (applause).. .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: . . . Susan King? Susan King?
. . . Gerald Simpson? Gerald Simpson?
. . . Kalei [sic] Kaeo?
MS. WOODS, FROM THE AUDIENCE: . . . (Inaudible).. .
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Oh. . .Rebecca Woods.
MS. WOODS: . . . Good evening, Council Members. Thank you for. . .allowing us to speak.
. . . I'm always nervous. First of all, I want to say thank you for your support--not just for
our agency, for all the non-profits because I feel that we all work together. . .in providing
valuable services to the community And I just want to also say that this past year I've
been doing a lot of training through PONO and Weinberg Fellows. What I learned is that
in Maui County. . .Maui County supports. . .all the, you know, a majority of the programs
and non-profits more than any other county in the State of Hawaii. And I want to say
thank you so much. I'm really proud to be a non-profit in Hawaii on Maui. . .because I
look at all the other agencies island-wide that I've been in... connection with, and. . .you
know, they envy Maui County. So, thank you. On that note, I'd like to just let you
know...and you're familiar with our agency, Ka Hale A Ke Ola and Na Hale 0 Wainee
Homeless Resource Centers. We do provide valuable services to the community,
especially right now. Right now, our waitlist--even though have rental
assistance. . .which isn't given freely, people have to earn it going through financial
classes, parenting classes, cleaning classes so that they're more valuable and productive
when they move out of the agency. But. . .given that, the economy right now has...we've
seen an effect on our agency. Our waitlist right now is 133, and that's a lot because it
was lower. . .probably about six months ago. We thought we were moving ahead with
the support that we had between the rapid re-housing and . . .(inaudible). . . Well,
because of the economy, more and more people are needing assistance, they're becoming
homeless, and it's really a challenge for our agency to keep up.
MS. HAMMAN: Two minutes.
MS. WOODS: We don't want to send people out into the community without the skills needed
to be self-sufficient. We are very successful in the programs that we provide, and. . .we
can't do that without your support. We've made. . .changes in our budget. We've taken
furlough days, our. . .employees have saved the agency $135,000. We're going to do it
again this year. We've made other changes, so. . .we've saved, probably, over $200,000
in making changes that were critical to assist in our budget. And, but I just want to say
thank you, and know that we're trying to do our part. We're doing more fundraising. We
have a website. We have First Friday in Wailuku. . .we have a booth up there. We do the
Charity Walk, the County Fair. We're making bread. So . . . (laughter). . . we're trying to
do our part in, in assisting the County, the State, and the Federal government in providing
services.
MS. HAMMAN: Three minutes.
MS. WOODS: So, thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Becky, how many on the waitlist?
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MS. WOODS: A hundred and thirty three. That's just for Ka Hale A Ke Ola. In Lahaina, I
have about 75. . .people.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: So total about 200?
MS. WOODS: Yeah.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Little over 200.
MS. WOODS: Over 200. Yeah.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Thank you.
MS. WOODS: Okay. Thank you.
AUDIENCE: . . .(applause). . .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Darlene. . .Reasonable?
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: . . .(laughter). . .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: I hope you be reasonable on your testimony . . . (laughter).. .
ALL: . . .(laughter). . .
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: . . .(Inaudible). . .
MS. RESONABLE: And it's Resonable . . .(laughter). . ..
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Oh, I'm sorry.
ALL: . . .(laughter). . .
MS. RESONABLE: . . .(laughter). . . Hi, my name is Darlene Resonable. It doesn't have the
"A" in there, just the "E" . . . (laughter).. .
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Oh.
MS. RESONABLE: It's Filipino. Anyway I, too, am testifying on behalf of Ka Hale A Ke Ola
Resource Center. Just to give you a few...of what programs they have there that I have
graduated. . .Parent Project; I've graduated Family Treatment, Money Management, Life
Skills. Been out of school for 20 years, got my GED there, now I'm enrolled in college
going to be a drug counselor, and that's just many of, you know, some of the successes.
And they, they offer so much and so helpful, and I thank them for everything. And if it
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wasn't for you guys, I wouldn't be where I am today. It's your funding that is helping us
move along. And I, you know, there's lots, lots of people, lots of people out there that
need help. So keep the funding going and more success stories will come. Thank you
. . .(laughter). . .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, questions for the testifier . . .(laughter). . .?
Thank you. Helen Fryer? Helen Fryer. . .followed by Aurora Young.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: . . .(inaudible). . .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: . . . Helen Fryer. No? . . .(laughter). . . Aurora Young?
. . . Colin. . .Delos Reyes?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: . . .(inaudible). . .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: . . . Followed by Andrea Castroman, Castroman.
NOTE: Pause while Mr. Delos Reyes approached the mac.

MR. DELOS REYES: . . . Aloha, good evening, Council Members.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Aloha.
MR. DELOS REYES: I'm here in support of MEDB and the Women in Technology, but also
for the bus, so I'll go over them pretty quickly. In my classroom right now, the kids are
creating animations, stop motion movies, and videos to teach younger students scientific
concepts. Okay. They're creating digital images that relate Chinese calligraphy to
atomic bonds. They're designing and creating circuit boards, programming chips.
They're in the process of trying to build one-inch-by-one-inch robots to compete against
college students. Okay. They're building windmills and solar arrays to understand
projects about alternative energy. We're in the process of creating aquaponic systems to,
so they...powered by solar cells so they can learn about sustainable foods and things like
that. All of this is possible because of the funding through MEDB and the WIT. . .or
Women in Technology. The reason they're doing this stuff is so the kids get 21 st Century
job skills and, you know, we have a, hopefully have a high-tech workforce to bring in
business here. So in an economic downturn, not only are we dependent on tourism, we
have other businesses, and that's really what it's about. We need more business going on
in here so there's more money, so everybody can get money. That's the first part. The
second part is the bus system. I'm also a coach at Kahana Canoe Club. And like the
others, we depend on them to get the kids to the canoe races and things like that. Not
only, not only...we don't only paddle at the canoes clubs. We...right now we're in the
process of restoring lo's in Honokohau Valley, Kauaula Valley, all around Lahaina. The
kids are...they have planted taro. They have...in fact couple weeks ago we pulled taro.
They had a taro pounding contest. They're learning haa's, they're learning oli's. All
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these things. . .take you guys to fund it, and we appreciate all the funding we can get.
We're on, we are a non-profit. And, really, what it's about is helping the kids out and
helping the future. Thank you very much.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, questions for the testifier? Seeing none, thank
you.
AUDIENCE: . . .(applause). . .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Andrea Castroman. . .followed by Gloria Gouveia.
MS. CASTROMAN: Aloha, good evening.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Can you pull it down a little?
MS. CASTROMAN: Oh, okay . . .(laughter). . .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Take it down.
MS. CASTROMAN: Yeah . . .(laughter). . . Okay . . .(laughter). . .
. . . Okay. So my name is Andrea Castroman. And. . first I want to thank you for your
support to assist with the MEO Headstart and the extended day and summer program. As
a single mother I was relieved to know my son was selected for the MEO
Headstart. . .program, and this is my son's second year. He's received services that has
provided him with the skills he needed to interact with other children and adults. While
he was at the school, I was able to work and provide food and a roof over his head. I
really cannot imagine not having this program. It has really helped. . .my son out
tremendously in his growth. He had many challenges before entering into the program,
which they have worked with him daily to overcome. He now will be ready for
kindergarten this fall. . .and I'm here because I feel this is a very important program for
the children--which they need this before entering into kindergarten to be ready. And to
have a full day of school is better than help. . .keeping the kids at daycare. And most of
the parents need to work, and it's hard enough to afford the daycare. By being in this
program, they continue to learn. . .and the children learn the most up until the age of six.
These are such important years for the kids. . .so please consider this when doing your
funding. . .how this program has benefited many families. Thank you . . . (laughter).. .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, questions for the testifier?
MASTER CASTROMAN: . . .(inaudible). . .
MS. CASTROMAN: Okay.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Bye.
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COUNCILMEMBER

: Bye.

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
AUDIENCE: . . .(applause). . . Gloria Gouveia? Gloria Gouveia?
. . . Candace Lahm? All right. Finally, right?
. . . Followed by Shaylan or Shaylan. . .Allmen.
MS. LAHM: . . . My name is Candace Lahm, actually Candy is what everyone calls me. I'm the
chief flight medic and supervisor of the Kula ambulance, and as you know I must be here
to talk about Maui medevac. I've been in our system here for 28 years, and I know that
makes me sound really old, but I'm, I'm not that old. And I've seen it grow to what it
has today, and we've been compared, you know, to the Seattle system. I mean that's the
best you can get. And to have us step back, you know, like this, it, it would just be really
sad to lose it all. And I know you've heard everything from my bosses and my
coworkers and everything, and the only other real insight I can give you is I'm in the
back with these people. We fly the most critical dying people to the hospital. And soon,
you know, we have a new helipad coming in. We'll fly them directly to the hospital.
And I'm really proud, even after 28 years, to say that I have saved so many more lives on
this helicopter, you know, than I ever have on the ground. Because, you know, we have
the really, really bad people. And to see that set back would just make me really sad, and
to think of the lives lost, you know, is just more than someone in my job can
comprehend. So without your support, people are going to die. I mean, I don't know
how else to put it. So please help us to continue saving lives on the Maui medevac.
Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, questions for the testifier?
AUDIENCE: . . .(applause). . .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Seeing none, thank you again. Shaylan Allmen, followed by
Mona Arenas [sic].
MR. ALLMEN: Good evening, Council Members. Shaylan Allmen, resident of Maui County. I
just wanted to reiterate a little bit about the medevac. I'm an extreme sports connoisseur,
kind of, you know, I just, I like to do things that are a little bit more extreme. And Maui
is one of the most extreme places in the world that I've been, besides Molokai and Lanai,
and that's where the medevac actually can get to you. . .and nobody else can. And. . .it
just gives me a little bit of...a little bit more. . .support in doing the things that I like to
do, and know that, you know, if something does go wrong that there is actually help out
there. If there wasn't help out there, it would be unfortunate. You know I'm not a risktaker without the risk management--if that makes sense. So I'm here to support the
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medevac, and I, I beg of you to, you know, take another look at it. And just--there's a lot
of people that come here from all over the world. . .knowing that that exists. And it's an
important feature that we have in Maui, and we're really blessed to have it. So, thanks.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
AUDIENCE: . . . (applause).. .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mona Arenas [sic], followed by Colleen Haptan [sic].
NOTE: Pause while Ms. Arcinas approached the mic.

MS. ARCINAS: . . . Aloha, Council Members. Good evening. My name is Mona Arcinas. I'm
here to speak about the need for the emergency medical helicopter.
.. . The best medical treatment in the world does not matter if a patient cannot be
transported safely.
. . . It's crucial for critically ill and injured patients to be. . .flown to the correct medical
facility, and it's an essential service to our County. So please find the money to keep it
flying. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Questions for the testifier?
AUDIENCE: . . . (applause).. .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Seeing none . . .
. . . Colleen Haupton? Oh, Hauptman.
MS. HAUPTMAN: Hauptman.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah.
MS. HAUPTMAN: Good evening, Council. My name is Colleen Hauptman, and I urge you to
find the necessary funding to keep the medevac helicopter in operation for all three
islands of Maui County and Kahoolawe. The medevac helicopter has assisted in over
250 missions since becoming part of the Maui emergency response team. The medevac
helicopter is a lifesaving service that overcomes the deficiencies between the ground
ambulance and airplane. Medevac was not intended to be a transport aircraft, but a
critical care emergency response service designed to land in remote areas where the
ground ambulance cannot reach or when time is of the essence. The difference between
the medevac service and the fixed-wing aircraft is that fixed wings transports stable
patients. The medevac transports patients in life-threatening situations. We should not
have to wait for a Coast Guard helicopter to come from Oahu or to wait for the
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ambulance to reach remote areas such as Hana or Lahaina when time is against us. We
should not have to worry about being transferred three or four times by ground
ambulance with the airplane when the medevac helicopter can take a patient right from
the scene to the hospital--whether here on Maui or Oahu. It would be wrong for the
County to go backwards and deny Maui, Lanai, and Molokai this service of care that has
come to be expected and well-deserved. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Questions for the testifier?
AUDIENCE: . . .(applause). . .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Seeing none, thank you. Marvin Foltz?
. . . Marvin Foltz. . .followed by Jocelyn Perreira. And, Members, Jocelyn Perreira is the
last person to sign up for public testimony this evening.
MR. FOLTZ: I'm Marvin Foltz, I'm the Pastor at the Good Shepherd Episcopal Church and--for
the last 12 years and by the grace of God. And I appreciate the opportunity to speak to
the Council this evening on behalf of the medevac helicopter. I worked the ER a lot
because I live in Central Maui, and. . .I told one of the EMS folks earlier, she was saying,
boy, you guys have a hard job, you chaplains. I said, well, our job is easy if you get them
safely to the hospital. But if we're waiting and waiting and waiting, and they cannot
an ive. . .safely because they're in the field somewhere where they cannot be brought in,
it is a terrible heartbreak. There seems to be a. . .constituency that's kind of small, but
you...that's because we don't imagine ourselves to be the ones that are going to be
needing that service. But I'll tell you the truth, you will find an opportunity in your life,
someone will be touched by the need for this helicopter service. And if it's absent,
what's the alternative? What is the option for those folks in remote areas of Lanai,
Molokai, even here on Maui? Their relatives are going to be waiting. . .and they're going
to have a bad result. And chaplains and others like them are going to be sitting there
trying to console them. . .because we didn't find a way to act. This is a vital service for
our community, it's a vital service to...for tourism because we, people want to come to a
place where they're going to be able to be cared for if there's an emergency. So I just
want to offer that. . .as a priority for our County's. . .services to be delivered. Thank you.
-

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Questions for the testifier?
AUDIENCE: . . .(applause). . .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Seeing none, again. . .Ms. Perreira is the last person to sign up for
public testimony. Is there anyone in the audience that would like to provide public
testimony? Now is your chance to sign up before we close this meeting. Jocelyn?
MS. PERREIRA: Good evening, Council Members. Thank you, thank you, thank you for your
hard work on behalf of our community Thank you for the support of our small towns,
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we deeply appreciate it. My name is Jocelyn Perreira. I'm the Executive Director and
the Tri-Isle Main Street program coordinator for the Wailuku Main Street Association,
Inc./Tri-Isle Main Street Resource Center. We are here tonight to add our voice for the
small constituency and to support the air ambulance medevac. And one of the reasons
why we want to. . .lend our voice of support. . .very recently you had heroes who had
saved a life in Hana. Now just imagine if they needed that medevac to get that person to
the hospital in a timely manner We cannot say one thing and do another. I think it's on
behalf for Hana, for Lanai, for Molokai, this is so critical to them. And we, you know,
those who are first shall be last and those are last shall be first. And that is something
really, really important. Now as. . .adding a note on my own, I would like to say that I
know your budget session has been a challenging one, and it is one not for the faint of
heart. You are all kamaainas as I look at you, so proud that you are kamaainas' child,
children of this land. So we know that you understand and you feel the pain of our
community
. . . We trust. . .deep in our hearts that you will find the courage. . .to do the right thing.
Thank you for this opportunity.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, questions for the testifier?
AUDIENCE: . . .(applause). . .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Seeing none, thank you again.
AUDIENCE: . . .(applause). . .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: One last time, is there anyone that hasn't provided public testimony
that would like to provide public testimony at this time? Please come forward.
. . . Seeing none, Members, this concludes our session here at Maui Waena Intermediate
School.
. . .END OF PUBLIC TESTIMONY . .
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: I want to thank everyone for attending this. . .meeting in regards to the
Fiscal Year 2011 Budget as proposed by Mayor Tavares. So with that, Members, this
meeting is adjourned. . . (gavel).. .
AUDIENCE: . . . (applause).. .

ADJOURN: 10:26 p.m.
APPROVED:
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